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MISSION AND VISION
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Maximise shareholders’ value
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Commitment to
innovation to develop
higher end products and
value added services
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Strengthen corporate
governance and
achieve international
environmental standards
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Maintain as the market leader
in the cigarette packaging
printing industry in the
People’s Republic of China
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEWE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”), | am
pleased to present to you the annual results of AMVIG Holdings Limited (the
“Company” or "AMVIG", together with its subsidiaries, the "Group”) for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting Period").

It is a relatively good year for China tobacco market in general. Tobacco
sales registered growth of 4.64 %. Overall profits and taxes had increased
mildly by 3.69%. The growth rates, however, were slightly lower in the
second half than those of the first half as the new State Tobacco Monopoly
Administration (“STMA") leadership re-emphasize the importance of a tight
supply of cigarette volume over demand. The overall pace of production
was delicately managed aiming to provide a sound base of healthy growth
in 2019. As a result, tobacco production registered a slight decline of 0.49%
when compared to last year. During the year, China tobacco continues to

remain the single largest contributor to the state's revenue.

The Group's turnover was stable during the year and registered a mild
growth when compared to that of last year. The acquisition of Outstanding
Viewpoint Limited ("OVL") (which is the investment holding company of
Yunnan Qiaotong Package Printing Co., Ltd. and Anhui Qiaofeng Package
Printing Co., Ltd.) had no impact on turnover, since the results of the
operating associates were equity-accounted for and included in share of

profit of associates.

The Group's operating expenses were also maintained at a lower level after
last year's substantial costs reduction. However, the depreciation of Renminbi
against Hong Kong dollars during the year had resulted in an exchange
loss of HK$67 million (2017: exchange gain of HK$66.8 million) arising from
the Group'’s Hong Kong dollar borrowings which led to a reduction of 23%
in profit attributable to owners of the Company in 2018 when compared
to 2017. However, excluding the exchange difference and on a constant
currency basis, underlying net profit attributable to owners of the Company
increased by 16% from HKS$279 million to HK$325 million.

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK6.4 cents.
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EARNINGS AND DIVIDENDS

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s turnover was HKS$2,503 million, an
increase of 2% as compared to last year. Profit attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$267 million in 2018, a decrease of 23% as against that of
last year. Excluding the exchange difference and on a constant currency basis,
the Group's net profit attributable to owners of the Company registered an
increase of 16%. Basic earnings per share were HK28.7 cents representing a
drop of 23%. The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK6.4 cents per share. Together with the interim dividends, total dividends of
HK14.4 cents per share were recommended for the Reporting Period.

The net cash inflows generated from operating activities for the Reporting
Period was approximately HK$879 million.

OUTLOOK

The STMA had changed its leadership in 2018, who is charged with the
responsibilities to revitalize cigarette brands in China. In addition, it is
understood that the “Three-large” strategy, “Large Markets, Large Enterprises
and Large Brands” will be re-introduced, which means there will be further
consolidation of cigarette brands. Such strategy will be beneficial to sizeable
suppliers like us with solid brands in our product portfolio which will
continue to grow stably.

The Group will continue its cost cutting initiatives and investments in
research and development, which will help our customers to develop new
products and new markets. The integration of the newly acquired associates,
Qiaotong Plant and Qiaofeng Plant will continue. Management is hopeful that
the profit of the Group will further improve through the abovementioned
initiatives.

The depreciation of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars had also caused
volatility in the Group's performance over the past few years. In addition
to more hedging being done over the past year to contain currency risks,
we will also bring more cash out of China to reduce the amount of foreign
currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) borrowings. This deleveraging will continue
in 2019.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my gratitude to our customers, business partners and other stakeholders
for the consistent support and trust in helping us to grow the business. It is
our mission and commitment to continue to create higher returns for our
shareholders in these trying times.

Chan Chew Keak, Billy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R am AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Turnover for the year 2018 was stable, despite the rate of growth slowed
down in the second half due to the initiatives taken by certain customers to
replace old products with new designs which caused a temporary decline in
the overall sales of certain products. Despite this, a number of new products
were secured during the year which was encouraging albeit the growth will

be developed in the coming years.

Further to a substantial decrease in last year, operating expenses continue
to drop in this year. Overall gross and operating margins remain stable amid

pricing pressure and rising labor and raw material costs.

Due to the completion of the acquisition of Yunnan Qiaotong Package
Printing Co., Ltd. ("Qiaotong Plant”) and Anhui Qiaofeng Package Printing Co.,
Ltd. ("Qiaofeng Plant”) at the beginning of 2018, underlying profit attributable
to owners increased by 20% (on a constant currency basis: 16%) when
compared to last year. Excluding the additional profits from new acquisition,
organic growth in underlying profit attributable to owners was HK$32 million
or 12% (on a constant currency basis: 9%) when compared to 2017. However,
the profit attributable to owners of the Company was affected by the
exchange difference arose from the depreciation of Renminbi against Hong

Kong dollar which led to a decrease in profit by 23%.

The operational cash flow of the Group continued to be strong and the net

operational cash inflow amounted to HK$879 million.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded an increase in turnover
of 2% from HK$2,448 million to HK$2,503 million. Excluding the impact of
foreign exchange, the turnover was stable and this is in line with the overall

China tobacco market.

Gross Profit

During the Reporting Period, the overall gross profit margin was 29.6%, which
was close to that of last year. The stable gross profit margin was contributed
by a general improvement in product mix, which offset the impact of
reduction in selling prices as a result of tendering, and rising labor and raw

material costs.
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Other Income

Other income, comprising mainly interest income and exchange gain, was
HKS$57 million, which represents a decrease of 58% when compared to last
year. The significant decrease was mainly due to the absence of exchange
gain of HK$66.8 million recognised last year derived from the appreciation of

Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars, the Group's functional currency.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses (including selling and distribution costs and
administrative expenses) decreased by HK$12 million from HK$276
million in 2017 to HK$S264 million in 2018. The decrease was resulted from

management’s efforts in containing costs and expenses.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses comprise mainly exchange loss of HK$67 million
while there was exchange gain of HK$66.8 million reflected as other income
in 2017.

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased from HK$55 million in 2017 to HK$82 million for the
Reporting Period, as a result of (1) an increase in market interest rate (i.e.
HIBOR); (2) an increase in interest rate due to hedging of Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollars; and (3) additional bank borrowings drawn to finance the

acquisition of Qiaotong Plant and Qiaofeng Plant.

Share of Profit of Associates

Share of profit of associates was HK$64 million in 2018, representing an
increase of HK$47 million when compared to last year. The increase was
mainly due to the additional profit contribution from Qiaotong Plant and

Qiaofeng Plant, which were acquired on 2 January 2018 as associates.

Taxation

The effective tax rate of the Group increased from 24% in 2017 to 27% in
2018. The rise was mainly due to the fact that the unrealised exchange losses

for the Reporting Period were not tax-deductible.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group achieved a profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$267 million during the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of
23% from HK$346 million in 2017. Excluding the exchange differences, and
on a constant currency basis, the underlying profit attributable to owners
of the Company increased by 16% to HK$325 million from HK$279 million.
The increase was mainly due to an organic growth of the Group's existing
business, and the additional profit contribution from the newly acquired

associates, Qiaotong Plant and Qiaofeng Plant.

Segmental Information

During the Reporting Period, substantially all the turnover was derived from

printing of cigarette packages.

Dividends

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK6.4 cents per
share (2017: HK7.3 cents) for the year ended 31 December 2018 to be payable
to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 14 June 2019. Subject to the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company, the said final dividend will be paid to the Company’s shareholders

on or around 27 June 2019.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2018, total assets of the Group amounted to HK$6,755
million and its total liabilities amounted to HK$2,767 million, representing an
increase of HK$316 million and HK$386 million, respectively as compared to
31 December 2017. Both total assets and total liabilities increased due to the
acquisition of Qiaotong Plant and Qiaofeng Plant, which was financed partly

by bank borrowings during the Reporting Period.

Borrowings and Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had gross interest-bearing borrowings
of approximately HKS$1,762 million (31 December 2017: HK$1,470 million),
representing an increase of HK$292 million. The increase was mainly due to
the additional bank borrowings drawn for the acquisition of Qiaotong Plant

and Qiaofeng Plant during the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Substantially all of the interest-bearing borrowings are unsecured,
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and bear interest at floating rates. The

maturity profile of the Group’s gross interest-bearing borrowings is as follows:

/(ETEE DTEFFH& Tﬁ

BRZHYHEEFTEIAEER  UBTHER
RIZEF KRG B - NEBF B ERBRE 2 EH
ByEwT -

2018 2017
=E-N\FE T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
On demand or within one year REXIN—FR - 3,597
In the second year B_F 1,762,292 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-ERF(BRMFRELEN) - 1,466,760
1,762,292 1,470,357

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months B T A A AR EERFIA
(shown under current liabilities) (RmBaEYIR) - (3,597)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months + =B A& BB EE FKIA 1,762,292 1,466,760

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had committed but undrawn banking
facilities amounted to HK$230 million (31 December 2017: HK$520 million).

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net assets of HK$3,988 million
comprising non-current assets of HK$4,303 million, net current assets of
HKS$ 1,464 million and non-current liabilities of HKS1,779 million.

Gearing ratio, measured by total interest-bearing borrowings as a percentage
of equity, increased from 36% as at 31 December 2017 to 44% as at 31
December 2018. Such increase was mainly due to the additional bank
borrowings drawn for the acquisition of Qiaotong Plant and Qiaofeng Plant

during the Reporting Period.

Charges on the Group's Assets

As at 31 December 2018, assets with carrying amount of approximately HK$7
million (31 December 2017: HK$11 million) were pledged to banks in respect
of the banking facilities granted to the Group.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (31 December 2017: Nil).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital commitments contracted but
not provided for in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment
of HK$124 million (31 December 2017: HK$38 million).

Working Capital

The current ratio decreased from 302% at 31 December 2017 to 248% at 31
December 2018. This was mainly due to management’s efforts in reducing

working capital to a more reasonable level.

Foreign Currency Exposure

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s business transactions and
assets were mainly denominated in Renminbi. All bank borrowings were

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group has foreign currency exposure on Hong Kong dollars related to
its bank borrowings. During the Reporting Period, the Group had entered
into cross currency swap (“CCS") agreements with financial institutions for
the purpose of hedging the foreign currency risk arising from the Hong Kong
dollars denominated bank borrowings. Apart from the CCS arrangements,
the Group does not have any derivative financial instruments or hedging
instruments outstanding. The management will closely monitor its currency
and interest rate exposures in order to implement suitable hedging policy as

and when appropriate to minimise such risks.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are directly

related to the underlying business of the Group.
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Material Acquisition and Disposal

On 2 January 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Outstanding Viewpoint Limited ("OVL") (which together with
its subsidiaries and associates be collectively referred as the “Target Group”)
at a total cash consideration of HK$700 million. OVL is an investment holding
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The Target Group is
principally engaged in the printing of high quality cigarette packages in the
Yunnan Province and Anhui Province in the PRC, through its investments in

Qiaotong Plant and Qiaofeng Plant.

Save as disclosed, the Group had no other material acquisitions or disposals

of subsidiaries and associated companies during the Reporting Period.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND EMPLOYEE
INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 2,121 full time employees in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments)
amounted to approximately HK$330 million (2017: HKS$343 million) for
the Reporting Period. All full time salaried employees, except for factory
workers and contract employees, are being paid on a monthly basis, plus a
discretionary performance bonus. Factory workers are being remunerated
based on a basic wage plus production incentive. The Group ensures that
the pay levels of its employees are competitive and employees are rewarded
on a performance related basis within the general framework of the Group's
salary and bonus system. In addition to salaries, the Group provides staff
benefits including medical insurance and contributions to staff's provident
fund. Share options, awards and bonuses are also available to employees of
the Group at the discretion of the Board and depending upon the financial

performance of the Group.

PROSPECTS

With the new leadership of STMA on board and the re-introduction of the
consolidation strategy, the China tobacco market is expected to grow stably
in 2019. On the one hand, the Group's new products secured in 2018 will
provide a firm platform for future growth, and on the other we will continue
to invest in research and development as customers continue its strategy to
renew and revitalise their brands. With the consolidation and premiumisation
strategies adopted by our customers, the Group is optimistic about the

overall future development in the China tobacco market.
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In order to counteract the rising labor and raw material costs, we will step up
to automate the production process and implement central procurement.
In addition, due to the volatility in the capital market, the management will
also take steps to contain the currency risks facing the Group by further
deleveraging it in the coming year. All these measures will help the Group to

improve its future performance.

Management would like to take this opportunity to show our appreciation
to the great support from all our shareholders, suppliers and customers. We
would also like to extend our gratitude to all our staff for their continuous
dedication, commitment and contribution to the development of the Group
during this turbulent time. The Group will strive to overcome the difficulties

and challenges ahead to create higher return to our shareholders.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND SUBSIDIARY MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy
E /\\\%%E

NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy

aged 68, was appointed as Executive Director in January 2005 and was
appointed as the Executive Chairman of the Group in April 2006. He had also
been the Chief Executive Officer overseeing the overall management of the
Group and development of corporate policies and strategies for development
of the business until 19 November 2009. With effect from 20 April 2010,
Mr. Chan was re-designated as Non-executive Chairman of the Board. Mr.
Chan has been the Managing Director of Amcor Asia, part of Amcor Limited
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company, since 1995. Mr. Chan is
a Chartered Engineer (UK) with a Master of Business Administration degree
from University of Strathclyde in United Kingdom. He is a member of the

Chartered Engineer Institution (UK).
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Mr. Ge Su
E&ELLE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ge Su

aged 62, was appointed as Executive Director in July 2009 and assumed
the position as President & Chief Executive Officer of the Company with
effect from 19 November 2009. Mr. Ge is currently the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ge has more than 25 years of experience in
the Chinese tobacco industry. He has a deep understanding and exposure to
the industry, and has developed a good working relationship with tobacco
monopoly authorities both at central and provincial levels. Mr. Ge assisted in
negotiation of three Leigh Mardon tobacco joint ventures in Qingdao, Beijing
and Kunming and sits on the respective boards in Qingdao and Beijing.
He has participated in many tobacco related projects including assisting a
multinational tobacco group in setting up a cigarette making joint venture
and developing a cigar cooperative project in China. Mr. Ge holds a degree
of Bachelor of Arts from Beijing Language Institute and a degree of Master of
Business Administration from China Europe Management Institute (currently
China Europe International Business School in Shanghai). Mr. Ge is also the
member of Risk Management Committee and Investment Committee of the

Company.
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Mr. Liu Shun Fai
BrEE A&

Mr. Liu Shun Fa

aged 48, is currently the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary
of the Group. He is responsible for the accounting, finance and treasury
function of the Group. He graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 1992 and is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Liu has more than 25 years of auditing
and accounting experience. Before joining the Company in August 2007,
Mr. Liu had been the Financial Controller and the qualified accountant of
two listed companies in Hong Kong for 9 years and had also worked in an
international accounting firm for 8 years. Mr. Liu was appointed as Executive
Director of the Company on 30 March 2015. Mr. Liu is also a member of Risk

Management Committee of the Company.
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Mr. Jerzy Czubak
Jerzy Czubak%t4

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Jerzy Czubak

aged 60, has more than 34 years of operations experience, of which more
than 19 years have been working with Amcor Tobacco Packaging. Mr. Czubak
has assisted Amcor group of companies in the setting up and management
of production plants in Poland, Ukraine, Russia and various investment
projects in Europe. He is at present the President of Amcor Specialty Cartons
of Amcor Limited. Mr. Czubak holds a Master of Art degree from University
of Lodz in Poland and a Master of Business Administration degree from
University of Bristol in United Kingdom. Mr. Czubak was appointed as a Non-
executive Director on 2 December 2011. Mr. Czubak is also the Chairman of
the Risk Management Committee and a member of Investment Committee

of the Company.
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Mr. Michael Casamento
Michael Casamento 4

Mr. Michael Casamento

aged 48, was appointed as Non-executive Director in June 2016. He is
currently the Chief Financial Officer of Amcor Limited. During March 2014
to September 2015, Mr. Casamento had also been the Vice President
Corporate Finance in Amcor Limited. Prior to joining Amcor in March 2014,
Mr. Casamento spent 6 years at SCA, a Swedish-listed global consumer goods
and paper company assuming the role of Chief Financial Officer for Asia
Pacific and then the Americas. During 2012 to February 2014, Mr. Casamento
was a director of a public listed Company called Productos Familia S.A,,
which is a publicly traded company on the Colombia Stock Exchange. Mr.
Casamento is a certified practicing accountant in Australia, and holds a
degree in Bachelor of Business (Accounting) from RMIT University, Melbourne
and a degree in Master of Business Administration from Swinburne University

of Technology, Australia.
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Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith
ERE A&

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith

aged 74, is engaged principally in personal investment activities, including
advisory work on private equity. He was the Chairman of Stirling Coleman
Holdings Limited from 2001 to 2017. He was the Chairman of KPMG Peat
Marwick Singapore from 1984 to 1993 and concurrently the Chairman of
KPMG ASEAN and a member of KPMG International Board and its Executive
Committee. He served as the President of the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore (now known as Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants) from 1982 to 1992. He was the Chairman of the Singapore
International Chamber of Commerce from 1995 to 1997. He was a founder
member and a former member of the Governing Council of the Singapore
Institute of Directors. He has also served as an Adjunct Professor in the School
of Accountancy and Business of The Nanyang Technological University.
Mr. Tay is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England &
Wales and he was awarded the First International Award by the Institute in
1988 for his contribution to the profession. He was conferred the Bintang
Bakti Masharakat (Public Service Star) by the President of the Republic of
Singapore in 1990. Mr. Tay is also a director of a few other companies. Mr. Tay
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director in April 2006 and
he is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee,
and a member of the Remuneration Committee, and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company.
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Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis
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Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis

aged 56, obtained a Professional Diploma in Accountancy in The Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in 1987. He is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Au Yeung
had worked for a number of years for PriceWaterhouse and had acted as
a financial manager of a listed company and a major private company
respectively in Hong Kong. He has been a certified public accountant
since 1994 and has over 30 years of experience in auditing, finance and
administration. He is now the director of Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited.
Furthermore, Mr. Au Yeung was appointed on 11 March 2014 and is currently
acting as an independent non-executive director of Wai Chi Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1305, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange). Mr. Au Yeung was also appointed on 12 August 2016
and is currently acting as an independent non-executive director of Man
Shing Global Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 8309, a company listed
on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Au Yeung was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director in May 2006 and he is the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committee of the

Company.
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Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric
HEERE

Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric

aged 57, is currently the Managing Director of a business advisory company
specialising in initial public offering, M&A and private equity investment. Mr.
Oh is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants
and he is also a member of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants.
Mr. Oh holds a diploma in business studies from Ngee Ann Polytechnic
with major in accountancy. Mr. Oh was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in May 2006 and he is the Chairman of the Investment
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of

the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ms. Lui Yuen Ming, Bella

aged 46, is currently the Head of Internal Audit of the Group. She obtained
a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong, a
Degree in Law from the China University of Political Science and Law and a
Master Degree in Business Administration from the University of Leicester,
United Kingdom. She is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She has more than 23 years of external and internal auditing
experience in an international accounting firm, a multi-national corporation
and listed companies in Hong Kong. She joined the Group in September
2007.

Mr. Zhou Nengbo

aged 45, is currently the Group's Director of Human Resources (“HR").
He graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University with a major in Business
Administration. He joined Kunming Plant in 2002 and has served as personnel
assistant and supervisor in HR department. In 2007, he was transferred to
Dongguan Plant as Manager of HR and Director of Administration. Mr. Zhou

was promoted to Group's Director of HR in 2018.
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SUBSIDIARY MANAGEMENT
Mr. Guan Shao Kun

aged 44, is currently the General Manager of Dongguan KWG. Mr. Guan
graduated from Yunnan Provincial Light Industry College in 1994. Between
1994 and 2000, Mr. Guan had been working as Chief Operator of Gravure
Printing Press in both Yunnan Tobacco Materials Company and Yunnan
Leigh-Mardon Packaging Co., Ltd. Between 2000 and 2003, he had been
working as Head of Printing Section in New Toyo (Viet) Paper Product Co.,
Ltd. Between 2003 and 2012, he has been working as Manager of Gravure
Section, Head of Technical and Production Department and Deputy General
Manager in Kunming Plant. In January 2013, he was appointed as General

Manager of Dongguan KWG.

Mr. Li Ru He

aged 51, is currently the Executive General Manager of Hangzhou Weicheng
and Vice President of the Group. He graduated from Xiamen University,
Fujian and obtained a bachelor degree in Biology, and qualified as Economist
and Engineer. He joined Hangzhou Weicheng in 1997 and was promoted to

Executive General Manager in 2010.

Ms. Ma Hui

aged 47, is currently the General Manager of Qingdao Plant. Ms. Ma Hui has
joined AMVIG since March 2012 and had worked with Amcor Group for 13
years. Ms. Ma graduated from Chemical Engineering College of Beijing Union

University and obtained a bachelor degree in Fine Chemical.

Mr. Song Wei

aged 45, is currently the Executive General Manager of Beijing Plant and Vice
President of the Group. He graduated from Beihang University and obtained
a bachelor degree in Business English. He joined Beijing Plant in 1998 and

was promoted to Executive General Manager in 2015.

Mr. Tao Fei Hu

aged 64, is the general manager of Qiaofeng Plant. Prior to his appointment
with Qiaofeng Plant in January 2010, he was the Deputy General Manager
and a founding member of Qiaotong Plant. Mr. Tao has over 40 years of

working experience in production and marketing management in the PRC.
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Mr. Xue Hui Lin

aged 56, is currently the General Manager of Qingdao Shuncheng Plant.
He majored in Industrial Enterprises and graduated from Jiangsu Radio and
Television University in 1986. He has joined Qingdao Shuncheng Plant as
Deputy General Manger in March 2011 and promoted to General Manager in
2015.

Mr. Zhu Tian Shou

aged 58, is a founder and the General Manager of Xi'an Plant and Vice
President of the Group. He holds a Textile Engineer diploma from Xi'an
Polytechnic University and attended master of business administration
course in 2003-2004. Before joining the Group, he was a senior engineer and
a member of assessment committee in People’s Liberation Army’'s (“PLA")
General Logistics Department. He was also the Head of a PLA Factory and
General Manager of Xi'an Great Sky Science & Technology Co., Ltd..

Mr. Zhang Jing

aged 58, has been employed by Qiaotong Plant since its inception in 1993
and is currently the General Manager. He is responsible for the overall
management of Qiaotong Plant. Mr. Zhang graduated from the People’s
University of China with a master degree in Business Administration.

Mr. Zhou Jin

aged 58, was one of the founding members of Qiaotong Plant. He is currently
the Vice Chairman of Qiaotong Plant, and is responsible for investment
management and setting up of new production facilities and branches.
Mr. Zhou is a senior economist in the PRC and graduated from the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences with a master degree in Commerce and
Economics. Prior to joining the Qiaotong Plant, he was engaged in academic
and research activities with a school and a governmental bureau respectively
in Yunnan Province of the PRC.

Mr. Zhuang Yan

aged 47, is currently Vice President — Business Development of the Group,
responsible for the Company's organic growth and supporting strategic
development. Mr. Zhuang also overseeing the operation of both Dongguan
KWG and Kunming Plant. Mr. Zhuang joined AMVIG Group since May 2015
and has more than 23 years of experience working with several multinational
companies, both in China and the United States. Most recently, he had
been working in Philip Morris International from 2003 to 2014. Mr. Zhuang
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from Thunderbird School
of Global Management in the U.S.A and a Bachelor's degree in Industrial

Management Engineering from Southeast University in Nanjing.
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INTRODUCTION

As a publicly listed company, the Board of AMVIG recognises its
responsibilities to comply with appropriate corporate governance
standards and guidelines. Therefore, we are committed to providing clear
accountability, proper management of the Company's asset, enhancing the
Company's reputation and standard in the community and supporting the
achievement of its environmental, safety, social and other obligations so as to

protect the long-term value to our shareholders, customers and employees.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code") contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

This report summarises the Company’s corporate governance practices and
structures that were in place during the financial year ended 31 December
2018.

BOARD MATTERS
Board’s Conduct of its Affairs

The Board directs and supervises the Company'’s affairs in a responsible and
effective manner. Each Director has a duty to execute his actions in the best
interests of the Company. The Board is responsible for the Company's overall
strategic direction, key operational initiatives, major funding and investment
proposals. It is also charged with monitoring the operational and financial
position and performance, as well as corporate governance practices. Where
appropriate, the Board is obliged to approve any key executive appointments
and succession planning. The Board also provides leadership and guidance
to management to facilitate effective supervision of the day-to-day business
operation of the Group. The Company has in place financial authorisation and
approval limits for capital expenditures as well as acquisitions and disposal
of investments. Pursuant to these guidelines, Board approval is required for
transactions above certain thresholds. The Board also approves the annual
budget and the financial results of the Group and various Board committees
were formed to assist in the execution of the Board's responsibilities. The
Directors may have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company with a view to ensure that board procedures, and

all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.
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In addition, the Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company's expense.
The Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant Directors to

discharge their duties.

The Board meets periodically at least four times a year and also meets as
warranted by particular circumstances outside the scheduled meetings.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, a total of four Board
meetings were held. The attendance of the Directors at Board meetings,
Board committee meetings and general meetings, as well as the frequency of

such meetings, are disclosed in this report.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

During the year, Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition, all Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company updates
Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance

and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year, the Company has organised a 2-hour in-house workshop
conducted by a professional firm for all Directors of the Company namely
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy, Mr. Ge Su, Mr. Liu Shun Fai, Mr. Jerzy Czubak, Mr.
Michael Casamento, Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith, Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wabh, Ellis and
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric. The workshop covered topics on PRC Tax Consulting,
Technology and Management Consulting and Risk Advisory. In addition
to formal workshop, all Directors namely Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy, Mr. Ge
Su, Mr. Liu Shun Fai, Mr. Jerzy Czubak, Mr. Michael Casamento, Mr. Tay Ah
Kee, Keith, Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis and Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric further
developed their business knowledge and expertise through (i) conducting
focused discussion on issues relating to the business and operations of the
Company at committee meetings; (ii) research, reading and study of relevant
regulations and standards; and (iii) attending relevant courses, seminars
and talks in order to strengthen the skills and knowledge relevant for their

respective roles.

All Directors have provided the Company with their respective training

records in compliance with Code A.6.5 of the CG Code.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE

The Board now comprises eight Directors including a Non-Executive
Chairman, two Executive Directors, two Non-Executive Directors ("NEDs"), and
three Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs"). The composition of the

Board and representation on Board committees are set out below:

ExgdEmRES

FA EFem\BREFEX  BE—2IEH
TR MENTES MEFATEEFE
WITEE])  R=2BUFNTES ([BIF
WITEFR]) EFEZHAKMESZBREZH

AT
Length of
Title Name Position Gender Age services
R HE B il FiR BR 75 5 28
Non-Executive Chairman: Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy Chairman of the Board Male 68 14 years
FERITESE - BIREEE S BEERTE ES 144
Executive Directors: Mr. Ge Su Chief Executive Officer Male 62 9 years
WITES Bk BEEHITE ES 9%F
Mr. Liu Shun Fai Chief Financial Officer Male 48 4 years
BrEE S BEEMBE Es 45
Non-Executive Directors: Mr. Jerzy Czubak Chairman of Risk Management — Male 60 7 years
Committee
FEMITES - Jerzy CzubakJt 4 B EELZESLE 3 7
Mr. Michael Casamento Male 48 2 years
Michael Casamento ¥t 4 3 24
Independent Non-Executive  Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith Chairman of Audit Committee ~ Male 74 13 years
Directors: and Nomination Committee
BN IERITEF - BRELSE A EREEERIEEZEETE 5 134F
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis  Chairman of Remuneration Male 56 13 years
Committee
BRI RELE HWNZEE 2 L/E 2 136F
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric Chairman of Investment Male 57 13 years
Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee
HEELE REZEEK e 134
PRERZERLE
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Our Directors are experienced in a range of corporate and industry expertise
such as accounting, finance and business and operation management. The
diversity of the Directors’ experience provides useful exchange of ideas and

views to ensure that decisions are made with a balanced judgement.

The Company has formal letters of appointment with each of the Directors.
Given the nature of their duties, executive Directors do not have a fixed term
of appointment. All NEDs (including INEDs) of the Company are appointed
for a term of two years from the date of their respective appointments/
renewal. All Directors are subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company but eligible for

re-election for re-appointment.

The Nomination Committee reviews the independence of each Director. It
considers a Director as independent if he and his immediate family members
have no relationship with the Group or its officers that could interfere, or
be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the Director’s

independent business judgment in the best interests of the Company.

Other than Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy, Mr. Jerzy Czubak and Mr. Michael
Casamento, who are senior management of Amcor group of companies,
there is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship

among the other Directors.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its INEDs an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be

independent.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 25 to 32 of this

annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are segregated and not
performed by the same person. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
leadership of the Board and the formulation of overall strategic development
of the Group, while the Chief Executive Officer is primarily responsible for the

day-to-day management of the Group's business.

During the year, Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy is the Chairman and Mr. Ge Su is
the Chief Executive Officer.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Liu Shun Fai. He has fulfilled
the requirement under Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As an
employee of the Company, the company secretary supports the Board,
ensures good information flow within the Board and compliance with
Board policy and procedure, advises the Board on governance matters,
facilitates induction and, monitors the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors. He has attained not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December 2018.
His biography is set out in the “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and

Subsidiary Management” section of this annual report.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses candidates for directorships
(including Executive Directors) with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board by reference to the board diversity policy of the Company
before making recommendations to the Board. The Nomination Committee
normally considers the current composition of the Board, the skills and
experience required, and ensures that the Board has an appropriate balance
of independent Directors as well as diversity with the right profile of

expertise, skills, attributes and ability.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Investment Committee, the Risk Management Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee to assist the Board in the execution of its duties. In
considering the composition of the different committees, several key factors
are taken into account, such as equitable allocation of responsibilities among
Board members, promotion of active participation and maximization of the

effectiveness of different committees.

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three INEDs: Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith
(Chairman), Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis and Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, which have been revised
to include review of the risk management system as required by the CG
Code with effect from 1 January 2016, are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The main responsibilities of the

Audit Committee include the following:

- assists the Board in discharging its statutory responsibilities on

financial and accounting matters;

- reviews the audit plans and reports of the external auditors and
internal auditors and considers the effectiveness of the actions

taken by management on the auditors’ recommendations;

- appraises and reports to the Board on the audits undertaken by the

external auditors and the adequacy of disclosure of information;

- reviews the cost effectiveness of the audit and the independence

and objectivity of the external auditors;

- reviews the systems of financial control, internal control and risk

management on their effectiveness; and

- reviews connected transactions and continuing connected

transactions, as defined under the Listing Rules.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year. It met with
the Company'’s internal and external auditors to discuss the results of
their respective examinations and their evaluation of the Company’s
systems of internal control and risk management. It has authority to
investigate any matters within its terms of reference and has full access
to and cooperation from management, in addition to its direct access to
the external auditors. The external auditor, in the course of conducting
their normal audit procedures on the statutory financial statements
of the Company, also considered the Company’s internal control
relevant to the Company's preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design their audit procedures. If
required, the Audit Committee has authority to seek external resources

to enable it to discharge its functions properly.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the interim financial statements
and the annual financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 and for the financial year ended 31 December 2018
respectively, as well as the auditor's reports thereon. Any connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions of the Group
during the year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee; in cases
of practical difficulties, the Audit Committee provides guidance to
management to assist in their resolution. Appropriate disclosure is made

in the annual report.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the Board
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the

external auditor.
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(2) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the three INEDs: Mr. Au Yeung
Tin Wah, Ellis (Chairman), Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith and Mr. Oh Choon Gan,

Eric.

The key responsibilities of and the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2018 are stated in
the Remuneration Report set out in this report on pages 60 to 69.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The main

responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include the following:

- makes recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and

structure for all Directors and senior management remuneration;

- reviews and approves the management's remuneration proposal

with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

- reviews and approves compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms

and is otherwise fair and not excessive; and

- reviews and approves compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with relevant contractual terms and are otherwise

reasonable and appropriate.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year.
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(3) Nomination Committee

46

The Nomination Committee comprises the three INEDs: Mr. Tay Ah Kee,
Keith (Chairman), Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis and Mr. Oh Choon Gan,

Eric.

The Nomination Committee’s main function is to ensure that the size,
structure and diversity of the Board are adequate for effective discussions
and decision-making. It also has the responsibility to ensure that the
Board has an appropriate balance of independent Directors, with a mix
of business experience in relevant disciplines.. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include the

following:

- reviews and recommends to the Board the retirement and
re-election of Directors in accordance with the Company's Articles

of Association;

- reviews the size, structure and diversity of the Board to ensure that
the Board has an appropriate balance of independent Directors
and to ensure an appropriate balance of culture, expertise, skills,

attributes and ability among the Directors;

- reviews the independence of Directors; and

- reviews the composition of the boards of subsidiary and associated
companies and where appropriate, provides guidance on the

appointment of suitable Directors to those companies.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year to

perform the above responsibilities.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The key objectives of the nomination policy of the Company include the

following:

- set out the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of

directors of the Company;

- ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of

perspectives appropriate to the Company; and

- ensure the Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee but the ultimate
responsibility for selection and appointment of Directors of the Company

rests with the entire Board.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following

criteria will be considered:

- Character and integrity.

- Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience and diversity aspects under the board diversity policy that

are relevant to the Company'’s business and corporate strategy.

- Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the Board.

- Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in accordance
with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would be considered
independent with reference to the independence guidelines set out in

the Listing Rules.

- Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and gender

diversity.

- Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a

member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company.
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- Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company's business
and succession plan and where applicable, may be adopted and/or
amended by the Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to

time for nomination of directors and succession planning.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board will evaluate the candidates
based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidates
are qualified for directorship. The Nomination Committee will also consider

recommendations for candidates made by shareholders of the Company.

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on the structure, size
and composition of the Board and this Policy and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s

corporate strategy and business needs.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

According to the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) adopted
by the Company, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service
etc. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service etc. The final decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and will from time to time review the Board Diversity
Policy as appropriate to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee
will discuss any proposed revisions to the Board Diversity Policy and make
recommendation on such revisions to the Board for consideration and

approval as it sees fit.
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(4)

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric
(Chairman), an INED, Mr. Jerzy Czubak, an NED and Mr. Ge Su, an

Executive Director.

The main responsibilities of the Investment Committee include the

following:

- considers and approves strategic and portfolio investments and

divestments within certain prescribed thresholds;

- reviews the Company's investment and treasury policies; and

- manages the Group's assets and liabilities in accordance with the

policies and directives of the Board.

The Investment Committee held one meeting during the year.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises Mr. Jerzy Czubak
(Chairman), an NED, Mr. Ge Su and Mr. Liu Shun Fai, both being

Executive Directors.

The main responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee include

the following:

-  oversees the establishment, implementation, and ongoing review

of the Company's risk management;
- reviews the overall risk management system and process and makes

recommendations on changes as and when considered appropriate,

having regard to costs and benefits; and

- reviews the Company’s material risk exposures and evaluates
the adequacy and effectiveness of the mitigating measures
implemented by management.

The Risk Management Committee held one meeting during the year.

The Risk Management Report is set out in this report on pages 70 to 74.

—/\FF#H | Annual Report 2018

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERRE

BB IERITEEHE
< FEFTTE Ferzy Czubakit
BRACAE o

KREZEGKE
ERE(ERF)
ERBTEEE

REZEGZTERAEBENTEE

- BFERMEETHRERBEAZE
BNEARERBESR

& %

— RHAARZREBR R AR
®

- BRREFGIRRRESTEERLRR
RAEBEZEENRALE -

AREEEEe
RRERLZESKEBEIFNITEE Jerzy
Czubakt £ (EF) FITEFEHTER
BriB i o

RRERZEGZ T ERBEREATSE

- ERARFEABERZSIE  BieE
R ERE
- Tﬁéﬁf AEE%%F&@%&E ’ \wu

RAEEZE ﬁTI%%%EE*ﬁE@%ﬁH&

MK FEHARREZHBER
)53

— BAXRRBZERNERKF - FEE
BEEMIGBEEEEERER
M o

RRERZEENFAETT —REH -

REBMERNAREL70E748 »

49



SBRHERERAT | AMVIG Holdings Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERARE

(6) Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee comprises the three INEDs: Mr.
Oh Choon Gan, Eric (Chairman), Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith and Mr. Au Yeung

Tin Wah, Ellis.

The main responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee

include the following:

- develops, reviews and monitors the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements and make recommendations to the Board;

- develops, reviews and monitors the code of conduct applicable to

employees and Directors;

- reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

and

- reviews the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

respective disclosure in the interim and annual reports of the

Company.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting during the

year to perform the above responsibilities.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration policy and basis of determining the remuneration of the
Directors are set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 60 to 69 in this

report.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for

the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:
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Remuneration bands

Number of persons

N E AE
Up to HK$1,000,000 =3 1,000,000 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001%8 7L £ 2,000,000/8 7T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules are

set out in note 9 to the financial statements.
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ATTENDANCE AT BOARD, BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETING

The attendance of each Director at the meetings of the Board and the
Board committees, and general meeting during the financial year ended 31

December 2018 was as follows:

EEZENRESREEERURK
RRGZHERR
BE-Z—\F+-A=+—ALHRERE
EELREFGREFE G RAURBEA

gZBERMT

Corporate
Audit ~ Remuneration ~ Nomination Risk management Investment ~ Governance General

Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting*

Es¢  3izRe  EMRRE  B4ZBf  EREEREE RUZRE Q¥ERERE BRAE
Number of Meetings Held Bgsiy 4 3 I I I 1 I I
Nonexecutive Chaiman HintE
M. Chan Chew eak,Bily LRERE 4 - - - - - - i
Brecutie Diectors gz
M L Shun e PRERE 4 - - - il - 1l
b Ge Su BEEE 4 - - - if 1l - 1l
NonErecutie Diectors FinEE
Mr. Jerzy Caubak Jery Cavbak i 44 - - - Il [l - 11
Mr. Michael Casamento ichael Casamento % 44 - - - - - - i
Indeendent Non-vecutive Diectors BUHGEE
M. Tay Ah Kee, Keith PEEE 4 3 [l i - - i i
M. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Fls BEAELE 4t 3 ll i - - Il i
Hr.On Chocn Gan, ric RERE 4 i 1l ll - 1l i 1

* being the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2018.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. Such risk
management and internal control systems are designed for managing risks
rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board is also committed to managing
and overseeing the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis, in order to

safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group through Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee on an ongoing basis and did not identify any
significant irregularity and deficiency. The Board concluded that the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group are effective and

adequate.

The Board considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit

and financial reporting function are adequate.

(@) Overview of Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

Risk Management System

The Group's Risk Management Framework facilitates a structured
model on the risk management processes in identification, evaluation,
mitigation and prevention, reporting, as well as monitoring of all risks
identified in respect of major business processes. For details of the risks
that are identified and how the Group manages those risks, please refer

to the Risk Management Report of this report.

Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing the risk
management functions of the Group and evaluating the effectiveness of
the risk management system. Operations management is responsible for
day-to-day monitoring and taking necessary measures to mitigate the
risks. Management regularly performs corporate risk assessment and any
major risk issues are reported to the Risk Management Committee at its

meetings.
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Internal Control System

The Group's internal control system comprises control environment,
risk assessment, control activities, information and communication, as
well as monitoring activities. The Group has established various policies
and procedures which are intended to safeguard the Group's assets and
resources against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, ensure transactions are executed
in accordance with management'’s authorization and ensure accounting
records are reliable for preparing financial information internally and

publicly.

The Audit Committee has reviewed, with the assistance of the internal
and external auditors, the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Group. Management has used its best endeavors to ensure that
there were no material internal control deficiencies, weaknesses or
areas of concern identified which might affect the shareholders of the

Company.

Management of Internal Audit Function

The Group has utilized its Internal Audit Department to assist the Board
to independently review the Group's internal control system throughout

the year.

Internal Audit Charter

The mission, objectives, accountability, responsibility, independence and
authority of the Internal Audit Department are clearly stated in a written
Internal Audit Charter, which is approved and periodically reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

Reporting Structure

The Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, although it also reports administratively to the Chief
Executive Officer. The Internal Audit Department brings appropriate
matters identified during the course of audits to the Audit Committee’s
attention and also has the right to consult the Audit Committee without
reference to the management. This reporting structure allows the

Internal Audit Department to maintain its independence.
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Internal Audit Plan

An annual internal audit plan for the Group, which is reviewed by the
Audit Committee, is formulated based on the results of the annual
assessment of risks and prior reviews of internal control. The Internal
Audit Department also conducts other projects and investigations as

may be required.

Ongoing Internal Control Review

The Internal Audit Department adopts a risk and control based audit
approach in assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
internal control system on an on-going basis. Audit scope is mainly
determined by internal control self-assessment questionnaire as
completed by auditees. Internal Audit Department performs operational
and financial reviews aiming to ensure that all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls are in place and
functioning effectively. Significant internal control issues as identified are
escalated to senior management for rectification. Major audit findings
and follow up of recommendations are reported to the Audit Committee

at its meetings.

Controls on Inside Information

In respect of procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, a mechanism has been established
to identify, analyse and disclose any inside information with reference
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission. Besides, the Group's employee
handbook contains the general prohibition from disclosing such
information to persons who do not have a demonstrable need to know
the information. Group staff is required to acknowledge the receipt and

comply with all the contents contained in the employee handbook.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period to ensure such
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The Company's
financial statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
acknowledge their responsibilities for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgment and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report on pages 93 to 98 of the annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

RSM Hong Kong has been re-appointed as the Company's external auditor
by shareholders at the 2018 annual general meeting until the conclusion of
the forthcoming annual general meeting. They are primarily responsible for
providing audit services in connection with the annual consolidated financial
statements. During the year, the total remuneration paid and payable to
the Company's external auditor amounted to approximately HK$4.3 million
of which approximately HK$3.6 million was incurred for statutory audit and

approximately HK$0.7 million was incurred for non-audit services.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board considers stable dividend payment to the shareholders of the
Company to be one of the main objectives of the Company. The declaration
and payment of dividends of the Company shall be determined at the
discretion of the Board and subject to all applicable laws and regulations in
the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong and the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company.

The dividend policy adopted by the Company aims to set out the principles
and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the
declaration, payment or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the

shareholders of the Company.

When considering the declaration and payment of dividends, the Board shall

take into account the following factors of the Group:

financial results;

cash flow situation;

business conditions and strategies;

future operations and earnings;

capital requirements and expenditure plans;

interests of shareholders;

any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or scrip or by

other means that the Board considers appropriate. Any final dividend for a

financial year will be subject to shareholders’ approval.

The Board will review the dividend policy and make any necessary

amendments as appropriate from time to time.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes in engaging in regular, effective and fair
communication with shareholders and is committed to conveying important

and relevant information to shareholders on a timely basis.

The Company is mindful to ensure that information is made publicly available
on a timely basis. A shareholders’ communication policy was adopted by
the Company to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and
encourage them to communicate actively with the Company. The Board will

review the policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

Disclosure of information is made by way of publishing announcements,
notices, circulars and financial reports through the website of the Stock
Exchange, press releases, general meetings, as well as the corporate website

(www.amvig.com) which has a dedicated investor relations section.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There had been no changes in the Articles of Association of the Company

during the year ended 31 December 2018.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

In accordance with the Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionists as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the

requisitionists by the Company.
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Shareholders may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a Director of
the Company. If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to be elected as
a Director, the following documents must be validly served to the Company
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 601-602,
6th Floor, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong: (i)
his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at the general meeting;
and (i) a notice executed by the nominated candidate of his/her willingness
to be appointed together with his/her information as required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, within the period commencing on
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and ending on the date falling seven days after the dispatch of

the said notice of the general meeting.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar: Tricor Investor Services Limited

at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Other enquiries or comments raised by any Shareholder can be mailed to
the Board at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Room 601-602, 6th Floor, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong, through the “IR Contact” under Investor Relations section in the
Company's official website (www.amvig.com), or sent through fax number at
(852) 2970 7070, or through the Company’s hotline at (852) 2970 7000.

DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct governing securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than that required under
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code"). Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, each of
them confirms that he has complied in full with the Model Code regarding

Directors’ securities transactions for the year.
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INTRODUCTION

As always, AMVIG seeks to ensure the levels of our remuneration are sufficient
to attract and retain high-calibre top management and marketing talents.
We continue to invest in our people and to implement appropriate incentive
scheme so as to maintain the stability of our management and marketing
talents. This is one of the key factors in achieving AMVIG's long-term business

success and the creation of value for our shareholders.

This remuneration report, which has been reviewed and approved by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, explains the Company’s policy on
the remuneration of Chairman, Executive Directors and NEDs, together with
the details of Directors’ remuneration packages for the financial year 2018 as

set out on pages 60 to 69.

1. KEY DEVELOPMENT

Regarding the remuneration to the senior executives, the Board has

taken the following steps during the year:
1. NEDs' fees were maintained the same as last year.

2. Bonuses were paid to the head office management based
principally on the delivery of outperformance against objective

benchmarks.

3. Incentive bonuses were paid by reference to key performance
indicators ("KPI") set for plant management. The KPI is basically set
to measure the performance of the management based on the
return on fixed assets employed, percentage of actual results over

budget and last year results.

4. Basic salaries were adjusted basically to reflect the effect of
inflation, work performance and the change in employment market

conditions.

Full details of the Chairman’s, Executive Directors’ and NEDs' remuneration

are set out in the report that follows.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has been set up since 2006 to review
both the remuneration structure and package of the senior management
and NEDs.

Tasks

The committee’s tasks are:

- to review and determine, on behalf of the Board of Directors, the
policies for executives’ remuneration and to report on those to the

shareholders;

- to revise and recommend to the Board, the remuneration system
for the NEDs;

- to monitor the implementation of remuneration policies being

applied by the Company; and

- to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

packages of individual Directors and senior management.

The present remuneration packages of AMVIG have been compared
with the prevailing market practice in Hong Kong and corresponding
recommendations were proposed to the Board of Directors for their

consideration and approval.
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Constitution and operation

The committee comprises solely INEDs and is chaired by Mr. Au Yeung
Tin Wah, Ellis. The other members are Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith and Mr. Oh

Choon Gan, Eric.

The committee held one Meeting in the period under review. There was
a full attendance record of all members. The committee has reported to
the Board on its activities after each meeting. The terms of reference of
the committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and

the Company.
The committee is accountable to the shareholders through its annual

report on Directors’ remuneration and the opinions of shareholders are

taken into account when making decisions.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The main elements of the Company's remuneration policies are:

- noindividual should determine his or her own remuneration.

- remuneration should be broadly aligned with companies with

whom the Company competes for human resources.

- remuneration should reflect performance, complexity and

responsibility so as to attract and retain high calibre individuals.

- motivate Directors to achieve challenging performance levels.

- align executive rewards with shareholders' value.

- recognise both individual and corporate achievement.
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REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES FOR EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS IN 2018

The committee has followed the remuneration policy and system
adopted in 2007 on proposing remuneration packages of Executive

Directors for the Board'’s consideration and approval.

The committee seeks to ensure linking the remuneration for top
management with their performance and the Company's operating
results by structuring remuneration packages to include both fixed and

variable components.

The following key principles guide its policy:

- policy for the remuneration of Executive Directors will be
determined and regularly reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee which will set the tone for the remuneration of other

senior executives.

- the remuneration structure will support and reflect AMVIG's stated

purpose to maximise long-term shareholders’ value.

- the remuneration structure will reflect a fair system of rewards for

the participants.

- the remuneration will be based on the fixed compensation,
performance bonus and pension arrangement. The performance
bonus will be linked to the achievement of demanding performance
targets that are independently set and reflect the creation of

long-term shareholders’ value.

- a performance share scheme will be developed in order to align

executives' and shareholders’ interests.

- certain KPIs, which can be quantitative and qualitative, will be
set objectively by the management within a framework that
is approved by the Remuneration Committee to evaluate the

performance of Directors.

- remuneration policy and practices will be as transparent as possible,

both for participants and shareholders.
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The remuneration package consists of fixed compensation, performance

bonus and pension arrangement in which the performance bonus is

suggested to play a more significant part in individual rewards as part of the

policy to attract, motivate and retain high performing individuals. The three

components of Executive Directors’ remuneration are as follows:
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Fixed Compensation

Fixed compensation includes basic salary, allowances and
benefits-in-kind. Base salary and allowances are set and reviewed
annually for each Director taking into consideration the competitive
market position, market practice, and the Company's and individual’s

performance.

Annual Incentive Program

The levels of performance bonus are set by the Remuneration
Committee. No Executive Directors serve on the committee. The annual
incentive can be paid in form of performance bonus as determined by
the Board.

Long-term Incentive

The Executive Directors are recommended to take part in the long-term
Incentive Plan (“LTIP"). The LTIP will be designed to align the interests of
the Executive Directors with those of the shareholders by an award in

the form of performance shares that is linked with shareholders’ value.
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5. REMUNERATION FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration paid to the Executive Directors of the Company was

shown below:
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For the year ended

Salaries and

Discretionary

Retirement

benefit scheme

31 December 2018 Fees other benefits bonuses contributions Total

BE-Z=—N\&F Hek EREF
+TZRA=+—HLEE bk HinxgFl BB TEAL sTEIfBER st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET FHET FERT FHERT

Executive Directors WITES

Mr. Ge Su BETAE 4,065 769 - - 4,834
Mr. Liu Shun Fai BB S A - 2,742 460 18 3,220
4,065 3,511 460 18 8,054

Retirement

For the year ended Salaries and  Discretionary  benefit scheme
31 December 2017 Fees other benefits bonuses contributions Total

BHEZZ—tF+=A= Fak RIRAEA
+—HILFE ik HAth 18 H) EIEAT FTEIHR HEt
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET FHET FHET

Executive Directors WITES

Mr. Ge Su BE A - 3,885 1,009 3 4,897
Mr. Liu Shun Fai BB S A - 2,664 666 18 3,348
- 6,549 1,675 21 8,245
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6. REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES FOR NON-EXECUTIVE

68

DIRECTORS IN 2018

The existing remuneration packages and policies which are based on

the qualification, professional experiences, time spent and workload

of individual NED have proved to be fair, attractive and effective in the

past years and therefore, the same policies and principles were adopted

continually in 2018.

REMUNERATION FOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The fees paid to each of our NEDs for their services on the Group and,

as applicable, on its Board committees are set out below. The fees were

proposed by Remuneration Committee and reviewed by the Board of

Directors.
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Retirement

For the year ended Salaries and Discretionary benefit scheme
31 December 2018 Fees other benefits bonus contributions Total

BE-2-)\F FER RIKEF
tT=ZA=+—-BLFE Bwe Htt @R METEAL B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER THER THER FHERT FET

Non-executive Directors ~ JEHATTEE
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy & BREE5E A4 491 - - - 491
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith BIE S 905 - - - 905
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis BRF5 K2 % 4 875 - - - 875
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric ~ #AEE L4 873 - - - 873
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy Czubak 4t 4 376 - - - 376
Michael

Mr. Michael Casamento Casamentost 4 376 - - - 376
3,896 - - - 3,896
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Retirement
For the year ended Salaries and  Discretionary  benefit scheme
31 December 2017 Fees other benefits bonus contributions Total
HE—_Z—tF+-A= HFak RIKAER
+T—HILFE wne H &R I TEAL SHEIfR #E
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET FET FAET
Non-executive Directors — FEITES
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy & 8B #E %4 491 - - - 491
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith EREL A 905 - - - 905
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis B{FG K2 % 4 875 - - - 875
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric  #AEE S 4E 873 - - - 873
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy Czubak %t 4 376 - - - 376
Michael
Mr. Michael Casamento Casamentost 4 376 - - - 376
3,896 - - - 3,896
CONTINUED SCRUTINY AND DISCLOSURE BEEERBE

The Remuneration Committee remains committed to continued

scrutiny of remuneration levels, and to high standards of disclosure and

transparency to shareholders on such matters.
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INTRODUCTION

It is vital for AMVIG to maintain a sound framework to identify and manage

its risks. An effective risk management framework provides the Group with

a solid foundation for sustainable growth of business in this ever-changing

competition landscape. We have identified the following major risks that we

are facing and what measures we have in place to handle these risks:
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MARKET RISK

Our customers have a constant need for new designs of tobacco
packages aiming to improve their product mix, as a result, it is important
for the Group to maintain our competitive advantage in our new
tobacco packages designs and research and development capability.
The Group will continue to invest and improve our capabilities to design
new tobacco packages, which will satisfy our customers’ need to further

upgrade their product portfolio.

We are also committed to interface with our customers at all levels to
better understand their needs. We will adopt a coordinated approach to

ensure resources are being utilized effectively for our customers.

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of potential financial loss and/or business
instability arising from disasters such as fire, earthquake, floods and
hurricanes, failure in internal controls or operational processes, inability
to manage costs; to continue product development and innovation;
to hire and retain talent and the failures to comply with government
and environmental regulations. The Group has over the year made

progressive steps to manage such risks:

(1) Profit improvement program remains as our important tool for cost
reduction, productivity enhancement and pricing improvement
of our operations. The implementation of central purchasing and
automation of our work floor continue to work well to keep the
expenses to a minimum. The benchmarking system helps us to
compare operational performances effectively. The management
will conduct regular reviews of the data in order to improve

production efficiency and reduce wastages.

(2) Continuous efforts are being made to standardise the production

on the shop floors and warehouse.
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The Group's loss time injuries were consistently maintained at a low
rate. A safety supervisory committee was in place to ensure that
our plants management has examined all workplace to identify and

eliminate existing or potential hazards.

FINANCIAL RISK

The Group is exposed to various types of financial risks, including foreign

currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and fair value risk.

Details of the Group's financial risk and the management of such risks

are outlined in note 5 of the consolidated financial statements.

(1) FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has limited exposure to foreign currency risk at
operational level as only a minimal amount of business transactions
are denominated in currencies other than Renminbi, the functional

currency of the Company, and the respective group entities.

On the other hand, the Company has substantially all of its
borrowing denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") which may

expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group has entered into cross currency
swaps (“CCS") amounted to HKS$S800 million (up to 45% of the net
Hong Kong dollar exposure) in order to hedge the abovementioned
currency risks. The management is constantly monitoring the
situation and will decide from time to time whether further hedging

is necessary.

As of 31 December 2018, if Renminbi had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against HKD with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would have been

approximately HK$87 million higher/lower than reported.
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2)

(3)

4)

(5)
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CREDIT RISK

The Group has no significant credit risk, which is primarily
attributable to stringent management of its trade receivables. In
addition to regular reviews of the recoverable amount of trade
receivables, the management has also placed strict controls over
working capital management of each operation. Such measures
enable the Group to shorten its working capital cycle and enhance

cash flows.

The counterparty risk is small as the Group’s customers are mainly
state-owned tobacco groups, which according to the assessment of

the management are financially healthy.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with

exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

LIQUIDITY RISK

As at the end of 2018, the Group's gearing ratio was 44% which
is healthy and most of its borrowings were of long-term nature.
Taking into account the amount of cash on hand of HK$1.2 billion,
the Group's debt ratio is only 12%. The Group will continue its
policy to monitor the cash flows of the Group closely so that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash in the short and longer term to

repay bank loans when they fall due.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's bank deposits bear interest at fixed interest rates and

therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to variable-
rate bank borrowings. With a stable outlook for interest rates, the
Group prefers to keep certain borrowings with variable rates, rather
than to enter into interest rate swaps, which fix the interest at
substantially higher rates. AMVIG considers that interest rate risks

are insignificant.

FAIR VALUES

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial

position approximate their respective fair values.
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The Directors are pleased to submit the annual report of the Company
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) together with its audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 38

to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's turnover and contribution to operating result for the year is
attributable to the printing of cigarette packages and manufacturing of
transfer papers and laser film. The analysis of the principal activities and
geographical location of the operations of the Group are set out in note 37

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the state
of the Company's and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out in the

consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 206.

The Board has declared an interim dividend of HK8.0 cents per share (2017:
HK7.6 cents per share) for the six months ended 30 June 2018. The Board
now recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK6.4 cents per share
to the members of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 14 June 2019 in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: final dividend of HK7.3 cents per share).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance is set out as below:

Overview

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 12 to

15 of this annual report.

Key financial and business performance indicators

Details of the key financial and business performance indicators comprising
revenue growth, gross profit margin, product mix for turnover and gross
profit margin etc. are shown in the sections headed “Financial Highlights”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 11 and pages 16

to 24 of this annual report respectively.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to promoting environmental protection and
pollution prevention and making improvements to the environment in
regions where we have our operations. We treat all relevant environmental
legislations and regulations as the minimum standard and seek to go
above and beyond this standard wherever possible, when it comes to
environmental protection. As required by the Listing Rules, the Company
is required to report on environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
information of the Group on an annual basis and regarding the same period
covered in this annual report. The Company will publish the ESG report on

the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange in due course.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with laws and
regulations. During the year, our establishment and operations have
complied with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.
In addition, the Company is required to comply with the Listing Rules and
other relevant regulations. The Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group during the year. There was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties affecting the Group's
results and business can be found in the section headed “Risk Management

Report” on pages 70 to 74 of this annual report.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group recognises that its success also depends on the support from
key stakeholders which include its shareholders, regulators, customers,
employees, local communities and business partners and is committed to
building a close relationship with them in order to improve the quality of its
products and services and achieve further success in its business. As required
by the Listing Rules, the Company is required to report on ESG information of
the Group on an annual basis and regarding the same period covered in this
annual report. The Company will publish the ESG report on the website of

the Company and the Stock Exchange in due course.
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Important events

No important event affecting the Group has occurred since 31 December

2018 and up to the date of this report.

Future business developments

An indication of future development of the Group's business is presented in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 12 to 15 and pages 16 to 24 of this annual report

respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year
are set out in note 30(b) to the consolidated financial statements and the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 103 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves available for distribution
amounted to approximately HK$2,791 million. Under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. The share premium may also be distributed in

the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018

are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group's borrowings as at 31 December 2018 are set out in note

25 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in

note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in the paragraph

headed “Share option scheme” of this report.

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

There was no equity fund raising by the Company during the year ended
31 December 2018, nor were there any proceeds brought forward from any

issue of equity securities made in previous financial years.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group is set

out on pages 207 to 208.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this

report were as follows:

Non-executive Chairman

Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy

Executive Directors

Mr. Ge Su (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Shun Fai

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Jerzy Czubak
Mr. Michael Casamento

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric

In accordance with article 87 of the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors shall retire but, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election pursuant to article 86
of the articles of association of the Company. Details of the Directors to be
retired and subject to re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company are contained in the circular to be despatched together with

this annual report.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the employer’s costs charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year and the retirement benefit schemes of the Group
are set out in notes 8 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group

are set out on pages 25 to 35 of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements. These related party transactions did not constitute

connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to the facilities agreement dated 13 February 2017 (the “Facilities
Agreement”) entered into, among other parties, the Company as borrower,
two subsidiaries of the Company as guarantors, and various financial
institutions as agent, arrangers, security trustee and lenders, a term loan
facility of HKS$1,150,000,000 (the “Facility A Loan") and a revolving loan facility
of HK$450,000,000 (the “Facility B Loan”, together with the Facility A Loan,
the “Loan Facilities”) are made available to the Company. The Facility A Loan
is repayable in its entirety on the day which is 36 months from the date of
the Facilities Agreement. The Facility B Loan is repayable at the last day of its
interest period, being one, two or three months or any other period agreed
between the Company and the facility agent provided that it shall not extend
beyond 36 months from the date of the Facilities Agreement. The Loan
Facilities have been used to refinance the HK$2.6 billion term and revolving
credit facilities made available to the Company in 2014 in full and thereafter
finance the general corporate purposes of the Company. A similar three-year
term loan facility of HK$400,000,000 was also made to the Company in
December 2017 for settlement of the consideration payable by the Company
in relation to the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Outstanding

Viewpoint Limited.

If at any time, either (i) any person or group of persons acting in concert
hold more voting share capital of the Company than Amcor Limited; or (ii)
without limitation to (i) above, Amcor Limited fails to maintain its beneficial
ownership, direct or indirect, of not less than: (aa) thirty five per cent (35%)
of the shareholding of the Company or (bb) only in the event of dilution
in Amcor Limited's shareholding due to any share placements by the
Company, twenty five per cent (25%) of the shareholding of the Company, it
will constitute an event of default as a result of which all or any part of the
commitments under the loan facilities may be cancelled and all amounts
outstanding under the loan facilities may immediately become due and

payable.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or

existed during the year under review.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 70% of the total sales for the year
and the sales attributable to the largest customer included therein accounted

for approximately 20%.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 40% of the total purchases for the year and the
purchase attributable to the largest supplier included therein accounted for

approximately 15%.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of their close associates
(within meaning of the Listing Rules) or shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s Shares)

had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates had any interest
in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with any of the businesses of the Group.

—Z—)\EF#H | Annual Report 2018

DIRECTORS' REPORT

EEEHN

REBEFEAL BT FEEEREREER
SEEZMAEMEZHBOXBTAEBZAH

TERFRHER

FR - ARBRAREFPHEBRANEAFEH
ERENN70%  HPSEAEFHEBEAMEL
20% °

AEBAAHERRBRAFEAFERE
REHH40%  HP S ARBEHRBRINGH
15% ©

B EN  BEEFAHTMNETHERA
(EERETHRADIBR (REFHMA - HEA
RAE 5% A LE)RAEEBRRE P HHER
FREAE MBS

EENGERRB2ER

BMEEFAEZATABBEAERRNEREK
BERNEEBRRAEBRBEF ZEBTHES
Ef s -

83



SBRHERERAT | AMVIG Holdings Limited

DIRECTORS' REPORT

.

==

g

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short

positions in the securities of the Company and its
associated corporations

As at 31 December 2018, the following Directors or the chief executive
of the Company had or were deemed to have interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong ("SFO"))
(i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provision of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
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Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules: ZAESTRIZEBANAR AT 2 R Bk
KRR

No. of Approximate

underlying percentage of

shares held issued share

Name of Director Nature of interest (Note) Position capital

FrstEEE

RBEE HEBITRAE

EEnR ERME (M3=E) ¥ BHOBEDL

Mr. Ge Su Beneficial owner 168,285 Long 0.02%
BEEAE BEHEAA TR

Mr. Liu Shun Fai Beneficial owner 84,142 Long 0.01%
BreiE s & BEREBA A

Note:  The underlying shares represent share options granted by the Company,
further details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies

contained in the Listing Rules.

Persons who have an interest or short position which is
discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO

So far as is known to the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2018, the following persons (not being
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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Approximate

percentage of

Number of issued share

Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares held Position capital

HE 8T

KRR 14 iR B R 28 RABAEIL

Amcor Limited (Note) Interest of controlled corporation 442,550,000 Long 47.63%
Amcor Limited (FJ5E) AT B E B A

Amcor Packaging (Asia) Pty Limited (Note) Interest of controlled corporation 442,550,000 Long 47.63%
Amcor Packaging (Asia) Pty Limited (Ff7¥) ZYEGEE S

Amcor Fibre Packaging-Asia Pte Limited (Note) Beneficial owner 442,550,000 Long 47.63%
Amcor Fibre Packaging-Asia Pte Limited (Fff3%) B2 A A S

Wellington Management Group LLP Investment manager 130,039,926 Long 13.99%
Wellington Management Group LLP WEKIE A

Pandanus Partners L.P. Interest of controlled corporation 106,784,000 Long 11.49%
Pandanus Partners L.P. SYEHEE S 5=
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Approximate

percentage of

Number of issued share

Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares held Position capital

HE T

RER AR 54 iR EE 28 RABHNEIL

Pandanus Associates Inc Interest of controlled corporation 106,784,000 Long 11.49%
Pandanus Associates Inc RESEEER A

FIL Limited Interest of controlled corporation 102,630,000 Long 11.05%
FIL Limited SESEE R e

FMR LLC Interest of controlled corporation 48,470,691 Long 5.22%
FMR LLC EEGhEEE R e

FIDELITY FUNDS Beneficial owner 47,198,000 Long 5.08%
BEES BEnEEA ey )

Note:  The issued shares of Amcor Limited are listed on the Australian Stock Exchange
Limited. Amcor Packaging (Asia) Pty Limited and Amcor Fibre Packaging-Asia
Pte Limited are wholly owned subsidiaries of Amcor Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the executive Directors has a fixed term of appointment but their
appointment can be terminated by either party by serving not less than
one month’s notice in writing. All non-executive Directors (including the
non-executive Chairman and the independent non-executive Directors) have

a fixed term of appointment of two years.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save and except for those disclosed under the paragraph headed “Related
party transactions” above, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief executive's
interests and short positions in the securities of the Company and its
associated corporations” under the section headed “Disclosure of interests”
above and in the section headed “Share option scheme” below, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in the Company granted to any Director, or their respective spouse
or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them, or was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) on 10 March 2004 for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group.
The Old Share Option Scheme expired on 9 March 2014 and no further share
options can be granted under the Old Share Option Scheme.
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A new share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
and approved by the Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 12 June 2014. Eligible participants of the New Share Option
Scheme include any employees, directors of each member of the Group,
joint venture partners, contractors, agents or representatives, consultants,
advisers, suppliers, producers or licensors, customers, licensees of the Group
or any person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or
may contribute to the Group. The New Share Option Scheme has become
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on 16 June 2014 and up to
92,154,700 share options entitling the holders thereof to subscribe for up to
92,154,700 shares can be granted under the New Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of grant of the options must not exceed 1% of

the total number of shares in issue.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the terms
of the New Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified
by the Board to each grantee provided that the period within which the
shares may be taken up under the share option must not be more than 10
years from the date of grant of the share option. There is no minimum period
for which the share option must be held or the performance targets which

must be achieved before the share option can be exercised.

The subscription price for the shares under the New Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion provided that
such price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
the grant of an option, (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five consecutive business
days immediately preceding the date of the grant, and (iii) the nominal value
of a share. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of

the grant of an option.
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No share option was granted under the New Share Option Scheme after
it was approved. As such, the total number of shares available for issue
under the New Share Option Scheme is 92,154,700 shares, representing
approximately 9.9% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31

December 2018. The following table shows the movements in the Company’s

St e
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share options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme but remain R 2 )
outstanding during the year:
Number of share options
BREHA
Closing price
per share
At Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed At Exercise  immediately
Name or category 1 January during during during during 31 December priceper  hefore date
of grantee 2018 the year the year the year the year 2018 Exercise period share (Note) of grant
R=2-NF Bk BERH
RZZ-N\F t=A @R AHEZ
ERALZAER -B-B  ERRE  FREFRE  FREH O FRxM =t-B &% (WE) SRUTE
Directors
E%
Mr. Ge Su 168,285 - - - - 168,285 29 July 2012 to 27 July 2021 HK$3 64 HKS4.73
BRAL “E-ZELACTARE BT 4T3
“EC-HEACTAR
Mr. Liu Shun Fai 84,142 - - - - 84142 29 July 2012 to 27 July 2021 HK$3 64 HKS4.73
BRERE ZE-ZELACTARE IMET AT
“EC-HEACTAR
Subtotal 25427 - - - - 25427
it
Employees (other than 1542522 - - - - 1542522 29 July 2012 to 27 July 2021 HK$3.64 HKS4.73
Directors) in aggregate
[EEL (EER) ZRZEYAZTARE IGMET 4T3
e o e el
Total 1794949 - - - - 1794949
zt
Note:  The exercise price of the share options is reduced from HK$4.72 per share to fizE: WEBEAQAAR-_ZT—=FA+=HHET2Z

HK$3.64 per share pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 13 June 2013.
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DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group made approximately
HK$95,000 donations to charitable organisations in Hong Kong and the PRC.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK6.4 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: final dividend of HK7.3 cents per share) to be payable to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 14 June 2019. Subject to the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on 6 June 2019, the said final dividend will be paid to

the Company's shareholders on or around 27 June 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the following

periods:

1. from 3 June 2019 to 5 June 2019 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfers of shares will be registered, for ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting to be held on 6 June 2019. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, all transfer
shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:00
p.m.on 31 May 2019; and
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2. from 13 June 2019 to 14 June 2019 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfers of shares will be registered, for ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to receive the proposed final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018. In order to be eligible to receive the
proposed final dividend, all transfer shares of the Company accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong, not later than 4:00 p.m. on 12 June 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every director and other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association. Such
provisions were in force throughout the financial year ended 31 December

2018 and remained in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance

throughout the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share

capital was held by the public as at 31 December 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance are set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” in this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee (the “Committee”) on 10 March
2004 for the purpose of reviewing and providing supervision on the financial
reporting process, risk management and internal control systems of the

Group.

The Committee comprises the three independent non-executive Directors

with Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith acting as Chairman.

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 together with the notes attached thereto have
been reviewed by the Committee, which was of the opinion that such
statements complied with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been

made.

AUDITOR

RSM Hong Kong will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

There is no change in auditor of the Company since the first appointment on
1 December 2003.

On behalf of the Board
Chan Chew Keak, Billy

Non-executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong A

To the shareholders of
AMVIG Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AMVIG Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 99 to 206, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter we identified is impairment assessment of goodwill.

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

REESEE

MRETSESRBERMOEXEHE  RAY
AHGEMBRENETIRAEENEEH - &
EEBREAERMEARESGSMBREALEA
EARETERERN KMo EE=HEHR
BEMNEER BMRATCHERBSFTEEHE
AR ©

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMWETNAREZERETEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB REE

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements

2HGREMBIRERME 6

The Group has goodwill of approximately HK$2,591 million
attributable mainly to the printing of cigarette packages cash-
generating unit ("CGU"). Management is required to test goodwill
at least annually for impairment.

B & B A EEA92,591,000,0008 7T - &
EABM([ReELEMU]) - BBEERS J\E%ﬁ‘i;@ ﬂ»ﬁi
B -

The recoverable amount of the printing of cigarette packages
CGU was based on a calculation of value in use which requires
management to make assumptions about the future including
forecast sales, profit margins and growth rates and to determine
an appropriate market discount rate. These estimates require
significant management judgement.
SRR GEEEMN 2 B SR EREREMES
B ZAEEREREHARRELRR  BEBUHEE - FH
RRERE  WETHEE ZMHHEIRE - ZEEFEREEE
PR BRI -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment

assessment included:

B ERERENEREZIZEF B

Assessing the mathematical integrity of the valuation model;

AHEAERA 2 BB TR

Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions based
on the CGU's historical performance, the current operating
environment and our knowledge of the industry;
ERNZRECEEBMZFEERE  BELLRE RS
TRZBEREFLERRR AR

Assessing the historical accuracy of management'’s previous
forecasts by comparing to past actual outcomes;

FRE BT ERERTEEIRERETNZ E & £
1

Assessing the appropriateness of the discount rate with the

assistance of our internal valuation specialists; and

ERFIABEEER BB TRHEMRE ZEEN - &

Performing sensitivity analysis by considering the impact

of reasonably possible changes on key assumptions on the

recoverable amount of the CGU.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but

to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities

for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Group's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Liu Eugene.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

15 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

] 3 N\ 7/
IR e

BE_Z—/\Ft+t-_H=1t—HILFE

2018 2017
—Z-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
Bt 5 FET FHET
Turnover E S 6 2,502,665 2,448,316
Cost of goods sold SHE KR (1,761,098) (1,725,223)
Gross profit EF 741,567 723,093
Other income HAb A 6 57,123 135,411
Reversal of impairment losses/ B 5 WA EEE
(impairment losses) on trade receivables #m CRERRE) 76 (5,015)
Selling and distribution costs $HE R $HR (85,405) (65,772)
Administrative expenses THRAX (178,163) (210,390)
Other operating expenses HAgLE R (70,689) (5,770)
Finance costs BMEMNA 7 (82,129) (55,150)
Share of profits of associates FE(RES & 2 Bl A 64,060 16,521
Profit before tax BiAT T 8 446,440 532,928
Income tax expenses FriSFimR X 1 (119,315) (130,279)
Profit for the year AEERF 327,125 402,649
Attributable to: BT &7 B
Owners of the Company ZAN/NIEZEWN 266,516 345,785
Non-controlling interests JEFE IR 2 60,609 56,864
Earnings per share BRER
~ Basic (HK cents) —EAR GBI 12(a) 28.7 372
- Diluted (HK cents) —#58 OBl 12(b) N/A N/A
FiEH TiEA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AR B B 2 I

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT - \F+-A=1+—RHILFE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Profit for the year REERF 327,125 402,649
Other comprehensive income: Hitt 2 E W
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AIREEFT DM PR 2 A -
Exchange differences on translating HME IR 2 [ X AR
foreign operations (166,057) 280,286
Share of other comprehensive income of associates FE{f B & N B EAth 2 W as (45,331) 8,973
Cash flow hedges & m = H
Change in fair value of hedging instruments FAEEZEHPIAEZ
arising during the year N EES) 7,209 (47,144)
Reclassification adjustments for (gains)/losses FABmBBEHFATIAZ
relating to the hedging instruments included (k) / BRZEHHE
in profit or loss TR (15,121) 37,054
(7,912) (10,090)
Other comprehensive income for the year, AEEHMEEEE
net of tax (BHMBRBIE) (219,300) 279,169
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZHKREE 107,825 681,818
Attributable to: BUT & 75 FE 4k -
Owners of the Company RARERA 64,156 603,041
Non-controlling interests FEE R 43,669 78,777
107,825 681,818
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
iR B MR

At 31 December 2018

I =

R_E-NF+-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —ET—+tF
Note HK$’'000 HKS$'000
B 5E FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMRE 14 662,469 701,633
Prepaid land lease payments FENHEE IR 15 156,263 152,438
Goodwill BES 16 2,592,255 2,740,810
Interests in associates A NI 17 863,647 131,294
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA 26 12,553 =
Other non-current assets HMIEREBEE 18 16,228 48,197
Total non-current assets FREEEALE 4,303,415 3,774,372
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 294,488 275,751
Trade and other receivables B 5 & HE b R GRIE 20 651,498 1,074,458
Contract assets EREE 21 37,157 =
Prepaid land lease payments TERNHEE T HFIR 15 4,432 4618
Prepayments and deposits AR FIE RiRE 46,205 44,166
Current tax assets AEATRIE & B 13,007 20,439
Pledged bank deposits EEFRITIFER 22 6,896 2,398
Bank and cash balances IRITRBE &% 22 1,270,781 1,242,769
2,324,464 2,664,599
Assets classified as held for sale PEABELHENEE 23 127,434 =
Total current assets REBEEAE 2,451,898 2,664,599
TOTAL ASSETS EERE 6,755,313 6,438,971
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves RAR&EE
Share capital RN 28 9,290 9,290
Reserves {1 30 3,654,700 3,732,688
Equity attributable to owners RATHEE NEEE=
of the Company 3,663,990 3,741,978
Non-controlling interests FEPE G A 324,773 316,650
Total equity ERBR 3,988,763 4,058,628
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REPBARRE
2018 2017
—Z-N\F —E—tF
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
Mk FBT FHET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Bank borrowings RITER 25 1,762,292 1,466,760
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 26 4,458 20,687
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBEE 27 12,147 10,627
Total non-current liabilities kFBaERE 1,778,897 1,498,074
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Ik B Ath FE S 508 24 909,005 829,167
Contract liabilities AHAaE 21 5,084 =
Current tax liabilities NEAFIBEE 25,952 35214
Current portion of bank borrowings RITBRZ MEEB D 25 = 3,597
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 26 17,496 14,291
957,537 882,269
Liabilities directly associated with HEYBERBFEHENEE
assets classified as held for sale BEEEENERSE 23 30,116 =
Total current liabilities BB EARE 987,653 882,269
Total liabilities BEEER 2,766,550 2,380,343
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERkBERE 6,755,313 6,438,971
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,464,245 1,782,330
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRRBERS 5,767,660 5,556,702

Approved by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2019 and are signed on its RN F=ZATHERESETSHELLET

behalf by: FIRKEE -

Ge Su Liu Shun Fai
B&% B

Executive Director Executive Director
HITEF HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018

N

AN
Zm

==
o

T

D7 4=
— X fanm
mm

HE)R

BE-T—\F+-A=+—BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANTREAEL
Employee Foreign
share-based currency Non-
Share Share Special  compensation  Hedging translation Revaluation ~ Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
WRAA 2 e FRAME
Ba  ROEE HHEE BEMERE HMER  BER  EfER  iRER  REEY &3t s EE4E
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TR TER T TEn TR TR TR TER TR TR TR
At 1 January 2017 R=F-t5-A-A 9290 2517392 (841,031) 19220 = 242001 8010 193897 1,091,425 3240204 262,187 3502391
Total comprehensive income for the year IEFRENRLE - - - - (100%) 267346 - - 345785 603041 78777 681818
Transfer from retained profits - Group ERERTETH 158 - - - - - - - 5478 (5478) - - -
Dividend paid for 2016 TH=E-RERE - - - - - - - = (30659) (30659 = (30659)
Dividend paid for 2017 (Note 13) THZE-LFRE (HiE3) - - - - - - - - (70608) (70608) - (70608)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders X T3EfHIERER S - - - - - - - - - - 24314 (4319
Transfer o reserve upon lapse of share options ~ EBREXMKEREE - - - (16731) = = = = 16,731 = = =
Changes In equity for the year TEERRED - - - (1673 (10090) 267346 = 5418 15771 501,774 54463 556,237
At 31 December 2017 R=E-tF+-A=1-R 9290  2517,392 (841,031 2489 (10,090) 509,347 8,010 199375 1,347,196 3,741,978 316,650 4,058,628
Totel comprehensive income forthe year ~ AFHREM AR = > = - (191 (194448 = - 266516 64156 43669 10785
Transfer from retained profits - Group ERERTETH 158 - - - - - - - 6,592 (6,592) - - -
Dividend paid for 2017 (Note 13) THZE-HERE (F3E3) - - - - - - - - (678200 (67,820) - (67820
Dividend paid for 2018 (Note 13) THZE-NFRE (i) - - - - - - - - (1434)  (74324) - (43)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders % 3E MM BRR RS - - - - - - - - - - (35546) (35,546
Changes in equity for the year RERRERD - - - - (1912)  (194448) - 6592 117780 (77988) 813 (69,865)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H 9290 2517392 (841,031) 2489 (18002) 314,899 8010 205967 1464976 3663990 324773 3,988,763
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

an\ E/Eui/mii%

For the year ended 31 December 2018

—NF+-A=t+—RIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F S
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FERT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHNRESRE
Profit before tax T8 Bl A 446,440 532,928
Adjustments for: BLATIER {EHFHEE -
Share of profits of associates JE (GBS X B) Y4 K (64,060) (16,521)
Finance costs A& R AR 82,129 55,150
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment losses & 5 B FUIE OB BB
on trade receivables BE),/REEE (76) 5,015
Write down of inventories MWREFE 3,194 1,222
Depreciation e 76,571 74,612
Net gain on disposals of property, EEME - BEREEZ
plant and equipment edlgas (518) (1,063)
Net exchange loss/(gain) SFIE N EsE, (e ) 67,226 (105,514)
Interest income BB (15,281) (13,929)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TET A E 1 Hh R IB A 4,640 4,448
Operating profit before working capital changes  Rar&iEE & BB AT 2 4L &5 600,265 536,348
Increase in inventories FEEm (45,705) (80,154)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables E%&EWTEWM
() 408,771 (94,117)
Increase in contract assets BHEELM (37,157) =
Increase in prepayments and deposits TR FRIE R IR S 38 0 (2,254) (15,074)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K H A FE AT B IR AN 72,889 87,069
Increase in contract liabilities EHEEEM 5,084 =
Cash generated from operations EREEBEAMNIRS 1,001,893 434,072
Income taxes paid SENIIECY) (103,766) (87,085)
Withholding taxes paid X AENR (18,905) (34,892)
Net cash generated from operating activities KRB EARIF ST 879,222 312,095

104



—\FF#H | Annual Report 2018
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FARBRERER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’'000 HKS$'000
FBT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETZHNRESRE
Increase in pledged bank deposits BHEARITIEFIE N (4,498) (175)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  MEMRE (158,077) (59,703)
Payments of deposits for other assets HihEE 2 RESMK (14,657) (16,543)
Dividend received from associates B Uk = N m A% 8 24,800 =
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - H%&Eﬂ%
plant and equipment FriSsR1E 4,460 5214
Interest received 2 U FI B 15,281 13,929
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries WHET B ARl 2 EE - (30,000)
Acquisition of associates Ue B B 2 N ) (670,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities REEEFEANESFE (802,691) (87,278)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBHNRERE
Bank borrowings repaid BRRITERK (200,000) (2/413,464)
Bank borrowings raised BFRITER 485,200 1,874,166
Interest paid ZAFE (71,725) (46,069)
Dividend paid to owners of the Company SRR EHEB ARE (142,144) (101,267)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders A FEFE I AR SRR B (35,546) (24,314)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing BERHELE(FH)M
activities ReFHE 35,785 (710,948)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND HeRHESEEYUN
CASH EQUIVALENTS ®m, (Rd)FE 112,316 (486,131)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREH) o w28 (83,410) 147,882
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R—A—HWEBEEREBELZEY 1,242,769 1,581,018
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Rt+t-A=+t—HHREK
AT 31 DECEMBER REEEY 1,271,675 1,242,769
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BRERBESZEYH D
Bank and cash balances IRIT RIS 5% 1,270,781 1,242,769
Bank and cash balances included in assets FFADEAREHENEEN
classified as held for sale RITRIB % 894 =
1,271,675 1,242,769
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1.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

AMVIG Holdings Limited (The “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 27
November 2003 under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands,
British West Indies. The address of its principal place of business is Room
601-602, 6th Floor, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued
a number of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") that are first effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group's consolidated financial

statements:

(i)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

(i) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(@) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement that relate to the recognition,
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of

financial assets and hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and
measurement requirements retrospectively to instruments that
have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to instruments
that have already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and
the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the
opening retained profits and other components of equity, without

restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under HKAS
39.

In addition, the Group applied the hedge accounting requirements
prospectively, except for the retrospective application as required
in HKFRS 9.7.2.26.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 resulted in the following changes to the

Group's accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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R E

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(@) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial

108

Re

porting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(i)

Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at FVTOCI.

Measurement

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(@) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

(if) Measurement (continued)

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement

categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in other income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains/(losses), together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line

item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in
other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the statement

of profit or loss.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(@) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
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Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

(if) Measurement (continued)

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within

other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group's management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are
recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCI

are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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A BHRARME

2. R REBEBITERTBR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued) HER (&)
(a) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial a) ERHITTR KB HBIMBRE

Reporting Standards (continued) 8 (&)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued) EEBUBHREEREIR M

THE(#E)

(iif) Impairment (i) J1E
From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward-looking BT N\F—A—H& ~5E
basis the expected credit losses (‘ECL") associated with its T2 AT IS B ST (4 BRI S A ARSI BR

debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI. The

impairment methodology applied depends on whether there

has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires lifetime ECL to

be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

The application of HKFRS 9 impairment model requirements at
1 January 2018 has not had significant impact on the Group's
impairment allowance for assets in scope of the HKFRS 9

impairment model.

The following table explains the original measurement
categories under HKAS 39 and the new measurement
categories under HKFRS 9 for each class of the Group's financial

assets as at 1 January 2018.

NN HERT AR EE W E
HBTAMBNBEREESR (R
HERER]) - BRIRETTEIUR
REERRETRELM -

HEZEEFEMNS - AREEA
78 B 7% s 2R R 5B 9 SR AT A2 R RO
BEIE - B RN TERIE
WrRR R AR HEEER -

R-F—-N\F—HA—-BEREEH
B EERNEIFRERE R TE
WARHAREERE AR HRE LR
FORBEREBENNEERE
BREBELEAYE -

TREER_T-N\F-H—BX
SERBHNeHEERBEEES
ERFIORARBEMBREE
AIE 95k 7 RIEH M R iAET B4R
R RFETEER o

Carrying amount Carrying amount

Classification under Classification under HKAS 39  under HKFRS 9

HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 REFRET  REFBHK

Financial assets RESESTEL REFBVHEREED ERAFEGHRAE HREEAFEIR

SREE E3REHNDE FoRELN D E YRR TE (B STERREE

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FET

Equity investments Available-for-sale FVTOCI 1,654 1,654
BAIRE A E RAFETAEAD

2E K=
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 1,074,458 1,074,458
H 5 I o e R IE Bk EWGRIE BEEHA AR
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(@) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial

112

Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

(iv) Hedge accounting

The Group has elected to adopt the new general hedge
accounting model in HKFRS 9. Depending on the complexity
of the hedge, this new accounting model allows a more
qualitative approach to assessing hedge effectiveness
compared to HKAS 39 to be applied, and the assessment is
always forward-looking. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has not had
a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in this regard.

(v) Interests in associates

The initial application of HKFRS 9 has not had a significant
impact on the Group's interests in associates.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaced
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.

The Group adopts the standard using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative impact of the adoption
will be recognised in retained profits as of 1 January 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated. As a result of initial application of
HKFRS 15, contract assets of HK$37,157,000 and contract liabilities
of HK$5,084,000 as at 31 December 2018 are separately presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position. To reflect these
changes in presentation, unbilled receivables of HK$73,912,000
that were included in “Trade and other receivables” and receipts
in advance of HK$645,000 that were included in “Trade and other
payables” as at 31 December 2017 are now reclassified to “Contract
assets” and “Contract liabilities” respectively as at 1 January 2018.
These reclassifications have no effect to reported profit or loss and
net assets for any period presented.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. B R BT E BB HR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued) HER (E)
(a) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial () BRI REETEBUBRE
Reporting Standards (continued) 8| (&)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in the following changes to the

Group's accounting policies.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of
cigarette packaging products and paper products. The Group
recognises the revenue at a point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to and being confirmed acceptance by the customer.
As the only performance obligation in the Group's contracts with
customers is the sale of manufactured goods, adoption of HKFRS 15
has not had a significant impact on the Group's revenue or profit or

loss.

A receivable is recognised when the customers have confirmed
acceptance of the products and the Group has issued invoices to
the customers, as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before

the payment is due.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

114

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2018. These new and revised HKFRSs

include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HK(IFRIC) 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Long-term Interest in Associates and

Joint Ventures'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with
earlier application permitted.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far, the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details of
the expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16 Leases, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards may differ as
the assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may be
identified before the standards are initially applied in the Group's
interim financial report for the six months ending 30 June 2019. The
Group may also change its accounting policy elections, including
the transition options, until the standards are initially applied in that

interim financial report.

BRANHTR] R ARAE R] BB B IS 3R
HEA(E)

A=A

(b) © FRMAE 5] R AE R # 5] R AEAS

Rl BB HREER

AEBEYEREFEADEBGER_-F
—NF—A—BRBRZTBFERR
BRI REET BBV B REE
Al - ZEHE] RRIETBEM RS
ZRBREAT A REEAREEHRRE

BT RS %ER| HE
F169%

55 (BBRGEHRE  AEHTETE
RBEEe)F3E g8

BRGRENF28E REELAL
BEDEA
KA

T RIE-NF A BRZEMABZF
EHRER - WAFFEAIER °

AREBERIEFEZFEFT KT ER
BHYNRERNRZEE - 29
SECHEES T HEZH TR A S
FEMBBRELBEAYE - BH¥
B2E—THBEIWRET - BERA
MBREENE16RBEENTHEXR
B ERRES TR EER
AEEBRATESER  AitHER
RMERNNERZER TR - NZ
SRANTEANAEERE_—FT—
NERNRA=ZTRIERNERZH TG
TR XEE—SHEETE - AK
BRI REA B E G RRIEE B
BENR  BEZERNVFZERARZ
RHIEI SR o



—Z—N\EFEEFH | Annual Report 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI R

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. B R BT E BB HR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued) R (F)

(b) B 28 MR1E 15 R4 Rz 5] RAEE

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations. The
new standard introduces a single accounting model for lessees.
For lessees the distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed and lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries forward
the accounting requirements for lessors in HKAS 17 substantially
unchanged. Lessors will therefore continue to classify leases as

operating or financing leases.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. The Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year

prior to first adoption.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will affect primarily
the accounting for the Group's operating leases. The Group's office
and factory property leases are currently classified as operating
leases and the lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Under HKFRS 16 the Group will need to
recognise and measure a liability at the present value of the future
minimum lease payments and recognise a corresponding right-of-
use asset for these leases. The interest expense on the lease liability
and depreciation on the right-of-use asset will be recognised in
profit or loss. The Group's assets and liabilities will increase and the

timing of expense recognition will also be impacted as a result.

As disclosed in Note 35(a), the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for its office and
factory properties amounted to approximately HK$42,465,000 as at
31 December 2018. These leases are expected to be recognised as
lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS
16 is adopted. The amounts will be adjusted for the effects of
discounting and the transition reliefs available to the Group.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation of HKAS 12 Income Taxes sets out how to
apply that standard when there is uncertainty about income tax
treatments. Entities are required to determine whether uncertain
tax treatments should be assessed separately or as a group
depending on which approach will better predict the resolution of
the uncertainties. Entities will have to assess whether it is probable
that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. If yes, the
accounting treatment will be consistent with the entity’s income
tax filings. If not, however, entities are required to account for the
effects of the uncertainty using either the most likely outcome or
expected value method depending on which method is expected

to better predict its resolution.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the interpretation
on the consolidated financial statements until a more detailed

assessment has been completed.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments that are

measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to these consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant

activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the

practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company's share of the
net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating to that

subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

118

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between the

non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised

directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at the acquisition-date
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities
incurred and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their

acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is

attributed to the Group.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured
at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the

acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is compared
to its recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised

immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Associates

120

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial ability

to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an
acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting period when
there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses
and other comprehensive income is recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. When the Group's share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses

not recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Associates (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that associate and (ii) the Group's
entire carrying amount of that associate (including goodwill) and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If
an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity method and does

not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$"),
which is the Company’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB"). The Directors
consider that choosing HKS as the presentation currency best

suits the needs of the shareholders and investors.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses

resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit or

loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in foreign

currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates

when the fair values are measured.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
other comprehensive income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in

profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s

presentation currency are translated into the Company’s

presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial

position presented are translated at the closing rate at the

date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates for the period (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income

and expenses are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (continued)

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign

currency tra nslation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are reclassified to consolidated

profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

(e) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each
reporting date for indications of impairment and where an asset is
impaired, it is written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and the

fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of money and the risks

specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the goodwill
of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other assets of the
CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused by
changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent that

they reverse the impairment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

124

(f)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade receivables
and contract assets. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the

respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,

including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument

at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument

that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks
and other similar organisations, as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and forecast economic information that

relate to the Group's core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit

risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant

decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating

results of the debtor;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(f)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments

of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is

determined to have low credit risk if:
(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash

flow obligations in the near term, and

(iii) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of

the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment grade”
in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a strong

financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the

following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any

collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(f)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following

events:
- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the counterparty;
- abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, including when the debtor
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in

profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the

assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL are estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to

receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL
at the current reporting date, except for assets for which simplified

approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their

carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(f)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether
its financial assets (other than those at FVTPL) are impaired, based
on objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated future cash

flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost is

considered also to be objective evidence of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not to be
impaired individually, the Group assesses them collectively for
impairment, based on the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account

are recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is directly reduced

by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the amount of
the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the allowance
account for trade receivables) through profit or loss. However, the
reversal must not result in a carrying amount that exceeds what
the amortised cost of the financial asset would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is

reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of cigarette packaging products and paper
products is recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been delivered to the customer who
has confirmed acceptance. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the customer has confirmed acceptance of the products and
the Group has issued invoices to the customer, as this is the point
in time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional,

as only the passage of time is required before payment is due.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of

the asset.

Subcontracting fee income is recognised at the point of time when
the cigarette packaging products manufactured on behalf of the
buyer are delivered and the buyer has confirmed the acceptance of

the products.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(9)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of

revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sales of manufactured goods is recognised on
the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are delivered

and the title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

Subcontracting fee income is recognised when the subcontracting

services are rendered.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period to match them with the costs they

are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are recorded
as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss on a straight-

line basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Government grants (continued)

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets

is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by
applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the

purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(k) Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up

to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions

payable by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises restructuring costs

and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Employee share-based compensation benefits

The Group issues employee share-based compensation benefits to

certain directors and employees.

Employee share-based compensation benefits to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of
non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of
the employee share-based compensation benefits is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the

effect of non market-based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because
of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting

profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered.

A BHRARME

3. TEGFHBE(2)
(m) FIE

PSR BN EAR IR SR R R 2 AR AR ©

7 HA S B TR T PA S R JE AR B0 A 2
- BRI A A BN IE S AR
2R RERBUEN N ERER A
FEERRARKANGR 2 M RAXA
BREE - FHBRBART A A
BzWamkMAxEE - AEBENHK
BZBBEDRARRSHRERKEE
ERRER FEERZHEAE -

EXEFBADNRMGRETEERAR
Z AREE B AR AT H RS F 2 48
EHMEZ ZRER - MERRHER
MEZBSIBNECHARE -—RTS
T LARERR - 140 B RR B s A i 7] BE 4K
HAMB 2 EREEZR - RBARK
BRIADAHRBEEL - AELEHRIEA
BENETUER - HERBEZER
BERBERER I ERRB LGN &
DR 2 X PR (MR
EBEHTINEMEERAE - A
FEENABNTHER -

HRPRHBRRARBERRZKREE
ERRAMNEREEZRE  EXHEEE
TRAERR -+ M fis AN 5% (] BE 422 5 8¢ 0 B
ERLEREZENARGRTATE
EEESI

BEREFRIREE < FREER S W& HRHE
ERERN > YR TBAEERAE
bt AR R E 2 2 B E 0 &
ERRAR -

135



SERHERERAT | AMVIG Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
#mAaER

PR M

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(m

) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as described
below), are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit

or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful

lives are as follows:

Buildings 20 - 40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 - 10 years
Plant and machinery 3 - 20 years
Office equipment 3 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 5-10years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting

period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and plant and machinery pending installation, and is stated at cost
less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant

assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting charges.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Contract assets and contract liabilities

138

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue
before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note
3(f) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the

consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not

presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective

interest method.

3. EREFEE(E)
(p) ERNEERBHNEE

RS B A BRI A W PSS
RERREBIERARERERANE
E - aNEERMEINARBRRE
HEEERMENG  LERBEERN
AR EGRITRESH D B E R KGR -

AEEERBEBBAZA - REP
XNHERBERAMNARE - WMAKE
FERERABBRA Z A EB EFRFRR
HEMEN  THEREOEE R
ZBRT - IRE R A IR -

REEPHE—GAME - FANE
ERFANBESUZS - HZha
HmE - THESHONANEERS
WEETNRFREEZT -

BRFREABEX DK © AHER
AFARERFRXRAMFE o



—Z—N\EFEEFH | Annual Report 2018
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial

liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised

in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(r)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an election
to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer's perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
other income.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an financial asset is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs

except in the case of financial assets at FVTPL.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
loans and receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. These assets are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method (except for short-term
receivables where interest is immaterial) minus any reduction
for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically trade and other
receivables, bank balances and cash are classified in this

category.

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments or financial assets at FVTPL. Available-for-
sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve,
until the investments are disposed of or there is objective
evidence that the investments are impaired, at which time
the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from equity to profit
or loss. Dividend, foreign exchange gain/loss and interest
calculated using the effective interest method on available-for-

sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity

instruments, are measured of cost less impairment losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(s)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to receive

consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest

method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash

flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the
asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. The Group must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within

one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of the asset’s or disposal group’s previous

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

(w) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured

to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments
in respect of foreign currency risk and interest rate risk in cash
flow hedges. The hedge accounting policy applied from 1 January
2018 is similar to that applicable prior to 1 January 2018. However,
under the new hedge accounting policy, the Group applies a more
qualitative approach to assessing hedge effectiveness, and the

assessment is always forward-looking.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness
requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management
objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the
same, the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship
(i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying criteria

again.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

144

(continued)

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore,
at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the
Group documents whether the hedging instrument is effective
in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk, which is when the hedging
relationships meet all of the following hedge effectiveness

requirements:

there is an economic relationship between the hedged item

and the hedging instrument;

the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes

that result from that economic relationship; and

the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that
resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group
actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument
that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged

item.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
and other qualifying hedging instruments that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of hedging reserve,
limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged
item from inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, and
the gain and loss are included in the “other income” and “other

operating expenses” respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(continued)
Cash flow hedges (continued)

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the
periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same
line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged
forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are removed from equity and included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial
liability. This transfer does not affect other comprehensive income.
Furthermore, if the Group expects that some or all of the loss
accumulated in the hedging reserve will not be recovered in the

future, that amount is immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging
relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet the qualifying criteria
(after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The
discontinuation is accounted for prospectively. Any gain or loss
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
hedging reserve at that time remains in equity and is reclassified
to profit or loss when the forecast transaction occurs. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss
accumulated in hedging reserve is reclassified immediately to profit

or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(y)

(aa

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

12 months after the reporting period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

)Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating
leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

(ab) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as

contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(ac) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is
not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the

consolidated financial statements when material.

4. KEY ESTIMATES

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed

below.

(a)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and residual
values, and related depreciation charges for the Group's property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful lives or residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have

been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2018 was approximately HK$662,469,000 (2017:
HK$701,633,000).

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The carrying
amount of goodwill at the end of the reporting period was
approximately HK$2,592,255,000 (2017: HK$2,740,810,000). Details
of the Group's goodwill are stated in Note 16 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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4. KEY ESTIMATES (continued)
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(c) Impairment loss on trade and other receivables and

contract assets

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the Group
makes impairment loss on receivables based on assessments of
the recoverability of the trade and other receivables, including the
current creditworthiness, the past collection history and securities
(if any) of each debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
The identification of impairment loss on receivables requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the actual result is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of the trade and other receivables and impairment loss on

receivables in the year in which such estimate has been changed.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, allowance for estimated
irrecoverable trade receivables of approximately HK$611,000 was

made.

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, management
of the Group estimates the amount of impairment loss for ECL on
trade and other receivables and contract assets based on the credit
risk of trade and other receivables and contract assets. The amount
of the impairment loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows
are less than expected, or being revised downward due to changes

in facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, reversal of impairment

losses on trade receivables of approximately HK$76,000 was made.
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4. KEY ESTIMATES (continued)

(d) Allowance for inventories and net realisable value of

inventories

Allowance for inventories is made based on the aging and
estimated net realisable value of inventories. The assessment of
the allowance amount involves judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome in future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance charge/write-back in the year in which such estimate
has been changed. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
allowance for slow-moving inventories amounted to approximately
HK$3,194,000 (2017: HK$1,222,000) was made.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expense. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer’s taste and competitor's actions
in response to serve industry cycles. The Group will reassess the

estimates by the end of each reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income tax in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provisions for
income taxes and deferred tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made. During the year, approximately HK$119,315,000 (2017:
HK$130,279,000) of income tax was charged to profit or loss.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise the potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The Directors have
established management policies, guidelines and control procedures to

manage the Group's exposure to such risks.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of
its business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of respective Group
entities, such as HKS and United States dollars (“USD"). During the
year, the Group started to enter into cross currency swap (the “CCS")
contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk arising from bank
borrowings. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of other foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments (primarily CCS
contracts) to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency
fluctuations relating to certain firm commitments and forecasted
transactions. The use of financial derivatives is governed by
the Group's policies approved by the board of directors of the
Company, which provide written principles on the use of financial

derivatives consistent with the Group's risk management strategy.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@) Foreign currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2018, if the RMB had weakened 5% (2017: 8%)
against HKS and USD with all other variables held constant, the
impact on consolidated profit after tax are summarised in the
following table. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 5% (2017: 8%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number indicates an increase in consolidated profit
after tax and negative number indicates a decrease in consolidated
profit after tax. If the RMB had strengthened 5% (2017: 8%) against
HKS and USD with all other variables held constant, there would be

an equal and opposite impact on consolidated profit after tax.
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Impact of HK$ Impact of USD
BrTHE EpA-7
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —Z=—+tF —E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
F#&T FHT F#&T FHT
Consolidated profit after tax RATE R (87,316)® (93,877)0 724 215

(i)  This is mainly a result of net foreign exchange loss on bank and cash
balances, other payables and bank borrowings denominated in HKS.

(i)~ This is mainly a result of net foreign exchange gain on bank and cash
balances and other payables denominated in USD.

0] &t CETERUBTAEZRITERAS
Mae - RN FIRRIRTTERZER
ESHRFREPTE ©

(i) WFEIEAUERTHEZRITERS

B SR N R M B A SR IR 2 B S U e R P
B o
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. WBERER(ZF)
(a) Foreign currency risk (continued) (a) HhEEE P ()
At 31 December 2018, if the RMB had weakened/strengthened RZZE-NF+=ZA=+—H A
5% (2017: 8%) against HKS with all other variables held constant, REHRABTRETEEBE,FE%(=
the impact on the equity are summarised in the following table. T—+F :8%) REMAEMEHE
The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign currency BRI HEmowERN TR -
denominated derivative instruments and adjusts their translation at RS O T B IR R LR INEFHEDT
the year end for a 5% (2017: 8%) change in foreign currency rates. ATH  WRFERMSW(ZZT—LF :
A positive number indicates an increase in the equity and negative 8%) ZINBIERE B ABERE - FH
number indicates a decrease in the equity. BTNERIEN - BB ERRD
RMB had weakened RMB had strengthened
ARMEE AR¥HE

2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-N\FE —E=—+F ZEBE-NF —T+F

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FET FET FET
The equity e (40,504)"M (41,994) 39,418™ 33,921™
(iii)  This is a result of the fair values loss of the derivative instruments for (i) WHEHNREREBLEPITETAZA

cash flow hedges. FEBEAE -
(iv) This is a result of the fair values gain of the derivative instruments for (iv) WEERRRESTEEHITETAZA
cash flow hedges. FEREATE
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations
under a financial instrument or customer contract. The Group's
credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables and

contract assets.

Customer credit risk on trade receivables and contract assets is
managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables and
contract assets are due within one month to three months from the
date of billing. Debtors with balance that are more than six months
past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances before
any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain

collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical
credit loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases. The ECL for trade receivables and contract

assets are assessed to be very minimal.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the
past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's view of

economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with

exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

A BHRARME

5. M ERER (&)
(b) FEREMR

FERREHFHIEZLIBTERIA
XXFPAMNBTEEMIIBZER °
AEENEERREIEREEESE
WHERANEE °

BEEBELEAEBERBENERPE
ERREENEE  BFREERR
T ERRSRRFEAREHEER
FEERR - EEXKFBEETEER
EENEF  HAETEAEER

i o ZEFEETREFPBEREKN
B HA B 19 28 SRRC 8% & B AT RO SE XA

h XEREFHNHEERMARETR
LEMRKERE - B RUGRER
BREEAREEZRARE—ZE=AR
FH - RBMEENEANEREA
ARXNAARBERBR  TiaE
REMFEIMEE - —RMF - A&EE
REREFREEN® -

AEBERBEN2HEHEEEHED
SHEAEBESRUAEARGNEEN
BIERE  FRSRNERBRERER
AESE  dHRAEEBENEES
BAYRRTRAETFDBBREATRH
BiEEN - ERNBBRRENEREE
TefE—FINAEBETRAEPERZ
RE—FRD - Kt - BEHEKK
HEAHWBEENRIERERE )

BHERXDREBEIFNERE
BRBEH ZEHLESELFEN
[ BR 2 % 5 S BUE Y B R O AR 07 AR
S BRI R AN R B S R KOR TR
HHRNEERRNBHNESR -

AEEWEBEAKTEERR - B
RBEDBRERZHFHRERF -
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

154

The credit risk on bank and cash balances including pledged bank
deposits is limited because the counterparties are well-established

financial institutions.

Prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment. At 31
December 2017, trade receivables of approximately HK$611,000 was
determined to be impaired. The aging analysis of trade debtors that

were not considered to be impaired was as follows:

5. M ERER (&)
(b) FERM (&)

ROTEBASER (BRCERRTE
RIZEERBRER  AAHFHIARA
MRS B -

ZE-NF—-—HFA—HZH
RZFE—NF—A—RBZA ' REES
BERTESHREIENBL TR
Ro-RZE—tF+=—A=+—8"
611,000/ 70 &) B 5) & U 5018 45 B E 7
B - WRABRREZE S ERIE
ZEREB O

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FHTT

Neither past due nor impaired
B 618 A
BB A

Up to 6 months past due

Over 6 months past due

BRI AR E

681,769
49,802
16,971

748,542

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of

default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believed
that no impairment allowance was necessary in respect of these
balances as there had been no significant change in credit quality

and the balances were still considered fully recoverable.

W REEA SR E 2 EUGRIAE R 250
R AR EcEFPER -

EBMERNEZ BEHBESE TR
AEBAEREENRCHRHFZEFA
e REBERLER  EEEMAEAR
EEEEMEBEEAEBE NERDER
AA2RKE - BB AR S S
e E R
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer

term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash flows

of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities is as follows:

A BHRARME

5. MBERER(F)

(0 FBESER
AREZHEATHERRE RES
IRBELEE - UBRRHBH U
BHEHRBREERDELBRELR
SHE -

ERNAEEETESREBESORT
RReREZINPAHMAT

Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years
—fFR —E=F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FHET FET
At 31 December 2018 R=Z—-N\F
+=A=+—8H
Bank borrowings RITER 67,026 1,791,028 =
Trade and other payables B 5 & B Ath A 5RIE 909,005 = =
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+—-A=+—H”
Bank borrowings RITER 43,654 39,657 1,484,781
Trade and other payables B 5 hEMEMNRIE 829,167 = =
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

156

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's liquidity analysis for its
derivative financial instruments. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted contractual net cash inflows and outflows
on derivative instruments that settle on a net basis. When the
amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed
has been determined by reference to the projected interest rates as
illustrative by the yield curves at the end of the reporting period.

5. MEERBRER(E)
(0 FBESER (#Z)

TRARSETESRIARDME Y
FHADN - ZRBREBERFTBABSLNFER
ERMARMNFREENITET ARG
HE - MERNIBUESHERETE
- RESHRHSREFNE - A
HERRAM R A ERHAA -

Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years
—FR —E=F —ZEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTHERT FHET
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE—NE
+t=A=+—-H
Derivative - net settlement TETR-FEEE
ccs R X = 17,773 4,590 -
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+%F
+-—A=+—8
Derivative - net settlement PTETRE-FHEE
Ccs XX ER 14,605 11,957 10,470

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its bank
deposits and bank borrowings. The Group’s bank deposits of
approximately HK$486,795,000 (2017: HK$562,005,000) bear interest
at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest
rate risks. The Directors consider the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk on the bank deposits is not significant as interest-bearing

bank balances are within short maturity period.

In the current year, the Group has been using CCS contracts in
order to mitigate its exposure associated with fluctuations relating
to interest cash flows. The critical terms of these CCS contracts
are similar to those of the hedged loans. These CCS contracts are

designated as effective cash flow hedges of interest rate risk.

(d) F=Ek

AEBRRITFRRBTERTE
HAEXE - REBZRITFRLY
#486,795,0008 L (Z T — £ F :
562,005,000 7T) - REFEMETE -
HEEQAFEMNERR - BREFER
THBIHERE  MEERALSE
& A SR 17 17 70 M 3 2 A = R g oK T
WARERK °

RAFER  AEEEBINEEEH
BREMREEASEERERMAL
REBER - LWEIXEREHRANZ
BRGNP EAE c hFERXX
EEEHANREERNERARCE
BIREIMEEH o
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to variable-
rate bank borrowings which bear interest at variable rates varied

with then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2018, if the interest rate had been 100 basis points
(2017: 100 basis points) lower, with all other variables held constant,
the impact on consolidated profit after tax is summarised in the
following table. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding bank
borrowings and adjusts the respective interest rates at the year
end of 100 basis points (2017: 100 basis points). A positive number
indicates an increase in consolidated profit after tax. If the interest
rate had been 100 basis points (2017: 100 basis points) higher,
with all other variables held constant, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on consolidated profit after tax and the balances

below would be negative.

A BHRARME

5. M ERER (&)
(d) F=Ek (&)

AEEZRERMNERBERRZE
RITEREM > ZERTEFREES
R F B M REL R o

RZE—NE+_F=+—8 " i%F
ETREI100MEESR (ZF—+%F : 1001E
EE)  REMBEHMAZERERIFT
2 HEEBEEN I ZENTRE
oo EBBESTREREERTE
o W ERFHEMBEFE100EEER,
(ZZ—+F : 100AEE) - FHET
RABEEFIGI o MAIE EFH1001E
EE(ZZT—tF 100EEE)  B&
FTEHEMA#AEAZRRFETE - HHE
EBBENEARZAETZE M~
SEEAEREE -

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Consolidated profit after tax RETE R 17,6230 14,6680

(i) This is mainly a result of the decrease in interest expenses on bank
borrowings.

() UWFEBIEHRTERZASFHZTE
K -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. BEERER (&)
(d) Interest rate risk (continued) (d) RIZEE (&)

At 31 December 2018, if the interest rate had been 100 basis points
(2017: 100 basis points) lower/higher, with all other variables held
constant, the impact on the equity is summarised in the following
table. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding derivative
instruments and adjusts the respective interest rates at the year end

of 100 basis points. A positive number indicates an increase in the

RZF-N\E+=-_A=+—8 " \#l
KRR EFH100fEEE - RRAABE
RAIZERRFREIE SRR TE
RTERBE - hBBEDNBIERE
BIUTET R YRFRFEBEN X
100 B &R o ISR EIZAN -

equity.
Basis points lower Basis points higher
HET K& HEEH

2018 2017 2018 2017
—ZE-—N\F —E—+F —E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
The equity e (9,479)® (14,651)M 1,745 6,316

(i)~ This is mainly as a result of the fair value loss of derivative instruments
for cash flow hedges.

(i) WFEBIEHMRSRBETNITETA
NFEEBEPTE -
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e) Categories of financial instruments as at 31 December

5.

A BHRARME

BRERER (&)

e) RtZA=+—H&MIAZ
5

2018 2017
=B N\fF —E—+F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets: SREE:
Derivative instruments in designated BEHPET2TETAR
hedge accounting 12,553 -
Financial assets at FVTOCI FREMEEmEEZATE
PR R EE
(2017: Available-for-sale financial assets) T —LF  AHEE
TREE) 1,571 1,654
Financial assets measured at REHRAGTEZ S REE
amortised cost 1,966,332 -
Loans and receivables (including cash - ERKEEWRGIE (BEHEE
and cash equivalents) RBREEED) - 2,319,625
Financial liabilities: LRISE
Derivative instruments in designated EEHPETZITETR
hedge accounting 21,954 34,978
Financial liabilities measured at RBEKATECERBE
amortised cost 2,676,381 2,299,524

Fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial

position approximate their respective fair values.

0 AFE

HEMBRARRAMBAEEERE
ErEBRAGEZEAMEREER AT
BEHRE -
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A M RA M

6. TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME

The Group is principally engaged in the printing of cigarette packages

and manufacturing of transfer paper and laser film. An analysis of the

6. EXRFRAEMUYA

AEETBN SRR REBEHE N
FEHRCHE - AEE 2 EXBEREMK

Group's turnover and other income is as follows: AP
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —E—tF
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHERT FHT
Turnover S
Printing of cigarette packages Eovekab a3l 2,476,805 2,416,802
Manufacturing of transfer paper and B K SR T IR LA
laser film 25,860 31,514
2,502,665 2,448,316
Other income EHA
Gain on sales of scrapped materials HERER W 6,292 6,258
Net gain on disposals of property, plant HEE  BEREHEZ
and equipment FE 518 1,063
Interest income F B U A 15,281 13,929
Subcontracting fee income MIEKA 16,871 10,188
Government grants and BT ERL R B U EEE
compensation received (Note) (OES) 16,245 30,633
Net exchange gain HIE H U a - 66,787
Sundry income FEIEUA 1,916 6,553
57,123 135,411

Note:

Government grants of approximately HK$16,245,000 (2017: HK$11,035,000) were
received from several local government authorities for encouraging production
enhancement and improving technology, of which the entitlement was
unconditional. Compensation received recognised by the Group in 2017 represent
compensation for the costs of relocation of factory premises and surrendering the

property in the People’s Republic of China.
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[ S5 Bh AE 2= BT IRt R B R M 2 B E % (it
T BRI 35 1 4916,245,000/8 T (— T —+ 4 ¢
11,035,000/ 70 ) Z BURERL « ZFZRHIR T15
BEEN  c REER T —tEF 2B REER
EhEARAMBOIHRBERSEWE L
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A BHRARME

FINANCE COSTS 7. BE KA
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
T Tt
Interest on bank borrowings RITERZFE 82,129 55,150
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. HARF

The Group's profit before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

following:

AEEZBRATEMNENR(GEA)AT

BHE :

2018 2017
—®-NF Tt
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FAET
Auditor's remuneration ZEAME 3,950 3,700
Cost of goods sold (Note) HEEMAA (FFE) 1,761,098 1,725,223
Depreciation e 76,571 74,612
Net exchange loss/(gain) BN 2 FEE (W) 67,226 (66,787)
Operating lease rentals in respect of land, BRI - BFREHZ
buildings and equipment wERERe 20,904 27,252
Research and development costs 7T K AR 289 246
Staff costs including Directors’ emoluments BT (BEFESHE)
— Salaries, bonuses and allowances —Fr& -~ BALNORRS 306,571 318,539
— Retirement benefits scheme — RURTEHET B
contributions 23,015 24,505
329,586 343,044
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ B 5 WA CRiEkBED )
impairment losses on trade receivables REEE (76) 5,015
Write down of inventories WoRESs 3,194 1,222
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- 2 34 =
8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 8. BiAN@F (42)
Note:  Cost of goods sold includes the following which are also included in the Misr : HEERKABIETIIRE  THaE
respective amounts disclosed separately above: EEXBITHEE2HRET
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Depreciation e 65,283 65,080
Operating lease rentals in respect of land, BT - BFREHFHEZ
buildings and equipment LEHERS 8,550 14,276
Staff costs BIXAR 191,826 187,473
Write down of inventories WoRTE 3,194 1,222

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' 9. EERERITHAEME
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and LT AEE EMBABNREERRGKRA(F
Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) are as 622F)FE3B KB EEHE ¢
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\#&E —T—+%F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FE&xT T
Fees viakey
Non-executive directors IERITES 1,243 1,243
Independent non-executive directors BN IERITES 2,653 2,653
Other emoluments E e
Executive directors HITES
— Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  —ZEA#F & « ZB R EYEA 8,036 8,224
- Retirement benefits scheme contributions —iRIKEFIFHEI 3k 18 21
11,950 12,141
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EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The emoluments of each director for the years ended 31 December 2018

and 2017 are set out below:
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A BHRARME

9. EENBRITHAEME (&)

BREEFREEZE_ZT\FR-E—LF

TZA=T—HLEFEZHMEHINWMT

Retirement

Salariesand  Discretionary  benefits scheme
Fees other benefits bonuses contributions Total

&R RIKER
ik HttgE R R FTEIZ N Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR

Name of Director ESpE

Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy DRGLE 491 - - - 491
Mr. Ge Su EFrE 4,065 769 - - 4,834
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy Czubak st & 376 - - - 376
Mr. Liu Shun Fai BRIt - 2,742 460 18 3,220
Mr. Michael Casamento Michael Casamento L4 376 - - - 376
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith BEEE 905 - - o 905
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis BERELE 875 - - - 875
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric WBEEEE 873 - - - 873
Total for 2018 —T-)\FHRE 7,961 3,511 460 18 11,950

Retirement

Salariesand  Discretionary benefits scheme
Fees  other benefits bonuses contributions Total

ek RIKEA
ik Hin g7 BB B A st
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THET TR TR

Name of Director EEpE

Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy DRELE 491 = = = 491
Mr. Ge Su B&HLE - 3,885 1,009 3 4,897
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy Czubak e & 376 - - - 376
Mr. Liu Shun Fai BB - 2,664 666 18 3,348
Mr. Michael Casamento Michael Casamento7t 4 376 - - - 376
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith BELE 905 - - = 905
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis BHBAELE 875 = = = 875
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric HEERE 873 - - - 873
Total for 2017 T tFER 3,89% 6,549 1,675 21 12,141
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’'s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year include
two (2017: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2017:

three) individuals are set out below:

9. EENBRITHAEME (&)

ARBEENEEZHABEALRENFER
AR F B AR I B AR R R A4 ©)
TOEBAKERBNEARS « TH=X
BRTERKERBEEENER -

FAREEZAERSHFALTETERS
(Z2—tF - MBR/ESF  KHEZME
REAFE EXFIRZ AT A - Hp=% (=%
—tEF  ZR)ALZMEFIOT

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —ET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Basic salaries and other benefits EAR & RHAEF 3,302 9,707
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 973 438
Retirement benefits scheme contributions — iRRAEF|HEI Z = 36 23
4,311 10,168

The emoluments fell within the following bands: e N FTHIEHE :

Number of individuals

A8
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+4F
HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ 7L & 1,500,000 7T 2 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T £ 2,000,00078 7T 1 1

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,000 7T
5,000,001 % 7T £ 5,500,000 7T

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments during the year. In addition, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office.

FATEESHEXREBRERTAMHE 2
ZHE e WA - AEE W ES N E T ERA
ExSmRFAL  ERRIIMAREKHE
SO 7 BER) SRR 2 /15 o
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10.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 10 R R4 F 5t 8l
The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF AEBREESREMEATEETENEN B
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes BEEMBEEREERIANERAESE
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s g ([wEestEll) - REBRBRIRESTE
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries ZHRDIBEREEHFERIEZ5%HE -
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of contribution of HZEESA LR A1,5008 T fEH®IE
HK$1,500 per employee and vest fully with employees when contributed BETEIftRE - HFABHREEMA o

into MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries established in the People’s AEBPRAPEARLNME ([HFE])KZZ
Republic of China (“PRC") are members of a central pension scheme WEBARzEERMAMBNER 2R
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are RASEHENE - WENBARIZARES
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’ basic EXFHFeRIEZETAD AP RER
salaries and wages to the central pension scheme to fund the retirement S EMERERRABIES - A MK
benefits. The local municipal government undertakes to assume A HEEAELENBARMERAE RAREK
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future retired RINEEZRAEFES - LEHBR A
employees of these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these subsidiaries AR RRARESHE 2 E—BESREGE
with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet the required YEL RS 3K -

contributions under the scheme.

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSES 1. PR EBBE X
2018 2017
ST Sy -t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
PRC corporate income tax and AR B 1 SEPTIS B
withholding tax TEIA
— Provision for the year — REFEREME 118,101 130,784
— Under-provision in prior year —FFERBETE 257 52
Other deferred tax (Note 27) H AR ERIE (f17E27) 957 (557)
119,315 130,279
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group has AR M FEREEERELEERT R
no assessable profit in Hong Kong for the years. B B EREBF GBI EDEME
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Tax charges on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices in respect

thereof.

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“New CIT Law"), which
became effective from 1 January 2008, the standard corporate income
tax rate is 25% except for subsidiaries which are qualified as High and
New Tech Enterprise and would be entitled to a reduced corporate

income tax rate of 15%.

The relevant tax rates for the Company's PRC subsidiaries range from
15% to 25%.

Further under the New CIT Law, from 1 January 2008, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of business in the PRC or
which have an establishment or place of business in the PRC but whose
relevant income is not effectively connected with the establishment
or a place of business in the PRC, will be subject to withholding tax at
the rate of 10% (unless reduced by treaty) on various types of passive
income such as dividend derived from sources within the PRC. As the
entire Group's foreign-invested enterprises are directly or indirectly
wholly or partially owned by a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary, a
rate of 5% is applicable to the calculation of this withholding tax on
dividends according to Comprehensive Arrangement for the Avoidance
of Double Taxation on Income and Prevention of Fiscal Evasion between
PRC and Hong Kong, and Guoshihan (2009) No. 81.

N.REHRAX (&)

Hi )y 2 ERTE MR A iR AN K E
REMEBERZBAITREREM 2BITE
Pl 2REREMFE -

BEPECEMETE(HEERER
F]CBEZZEENF—A—BEBER
EEMEMEHERE25% - B TAERKA
B WEAEECEMEHRB
E15% 2 B AT

ARRFEMBRARZEBRENT15%E
25% °

S - RIBBHEEAEHOE - AZFEN
F-A—HE EFBEHREARKLEE
B RBEPEFEARIERE 5
B ER1S 2 #H B W A B2 EL 7 PP B 3R D AT AR
BBMREERBEBZEERER &
AREZRKRBWA (WRRPEREAZK
B H10% (B FEHR B U 175 6 0% o ) B TR 1
BIE - R AKEFRAAIERERRTIA
—EEBEIMAZZMB R R EENEE
2RO HESR - WRE(NBMEERAR
HAABHERESHBAMD ERRHRN R
BE) REIBT K (2009)815% + BAR S ET EILIE
TENBE IR A 2 TR A55% e
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11.INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

A BHRARME

M. FrE8ExX (2)

A reconciliation between the income tax expenses and the product of FriS ¢ 5 2 BA R A s A SR A B AR R 2 18
profit before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rate is as follows: ZHEERIATE
2018 2017
=ZE-—N\F —ET—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Profit before tax A Al 446,440 532,928
Tax at applicable tax rate of 25% 1R AT R 5% E R FiIE 111,610 133,232
Tax effect of share of profits of associates BB A RI& A 2 BIE s/ 2 (16,015) (4,130)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEARMMA 2RI E (855) (25,774)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAMRHAS 2 B8 56,321 34,719
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary
differences RERLREER 2 BB E (1,293) 2,981
Tax effect of unused tax loss not recognised NERAREARIBEEIE 2 RS T E 2,565 2,261
Tax effect of tax concession MIBER 2 BGTE (47,842) (45,689)
Under-provision in prior year FFERETR 257 52
Withholding tax TEFLIE 14,567 32,627
Income tax expenses s i f > 119,315 130,279
=
12.EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.8KRE2%

(a)

Basic earnings per share of HK28.7 cents (2017: HK37.2 cents) is
calculated based on the Group's profit attributable to the owners
of the Company for the year of approximately HK$266,516,000
(2017: HK$345,785,000) and the weighted average number of shares
of approximately 929,047,000 ordinary shares (2017: 929,047,000

ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company did
not have any potentially dilutive ordinary shares as the exercise
price of the share options is higher than the average market price
of the Company's shares during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2018.

(a)

BREAREF 28 7B (ZZ—+F :
3728 DIEAFEZARRHES
A FEAE AN & B 5 A1 49266,516,000 7
JTL(ZZF—+4F 345,785,000/ 7T )
FFEFANBBETEBER 2 NEFEHRK
#49929,047,0000 (=T —+F :
929,047,0008% ) FHH o

HRARAREBEZ_ZT—+tFR=F
*)\¢+_ﬂ—+*ﬂﬂ:¢rlﬁﬁ§ﬁﬁ
BITEERTMSNTARERS B
f% I AR AE fADE R HEE SR -
E27|GREERT -
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DIVIDENDS 13.

A final dividend of HK6.4 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2018, amounted to approximately HK$59,459,000 is proposed
by the Board subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting. The proposed final dividend is not recognised
as liabilities at 31 December 2018.

@S\

ERERBRREHE_T—N\F+=_A=
T—HLEFEREREGHREBIRG 4B
il » & 3£ A&59,459,000/8 7T @ EAFRER
FEERRAFAE EHE - Bk RHAK S
WEBRABR_ZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H

ZBfE-

2018 2017
—E-N\F S
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FExT FHET

Interim dividend paid of HK8.0 cents BRI B S B AR AAR8.08 L
(2017: HK7.6 cents) per ordinary share (ZZF—+tF :768l) 74,324 70,608

Proposed final dividend of HK6.4 cents Bk R BARR BB AR i Ak 6.4 1L

(2017: HK7 3 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ—+F :738l) 59,459 67,820
133,783 138,428




14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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14.9% - BERRE

Leasehold Plant and Office Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BT HENEEE BEREE  HOERG E§ EBIR E )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR T#En TEn THR T#En TEn THR
Cost A
At 1 January 2017 RZF-t5-A-A 187019 29923 1048897 35,714 32253 i 1406523
Additions AE 200 1,904 19,626 1019 449 46,246 69,444
Transfers gy 54671 - 43967 313 174 (99,125) -
Disposals/wiite off HE /# - (449) (12160) (1,267) (4781) = (18657)
Exchange differences EXZR 16843 2414 84,181 2804 2383 4187 112812
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+-A=1+-H 258,733 33792 1,184,511 38,583 30478 205 1570122
Additions AE 182 1,545 18,788 4,257 1,137 116,159 142,068
Transfers gy 158 409 34,810 75 = (35,452) =
Disposals/write off HE /Wi - (21,526) 9,368) (296) (1,835) - (33,025)
Transfer to assets classfied as held for sale BB EHBAR{ELENEE (39,209) = (24,346) (270) (544) (12,058) (76,427)
Exchange differences EREE (12,919) (908) (62,602) (1,583) (1,598) (4,576) (84,186)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+=A=1-H 206,945 13312 1,141,793 40,766 27,638 8,008 1518552
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 237 & RFi(E
At 1 January 2017 RZF-tE-A-R 4430 27,139 630,743 25887 19987 - 747,186
Charge for the year sl 11,585 1375 55,183 2736 3733 - 7461
Disposals/uwrite off &/ M - (450) (8789) (1,089 (418 - (14,506)
Exchange differences EiZE 3867 2175 51491 2,106 1558 - 61,197
At 31 Decerber 2017 RZZ-tF+-A=1-A 58,882 30,239 728,632 29,640 21,096 - 868,489
Charge for the year ERilk 13,184 1619 54,270 4351 3147 - 76,571
Disposals/uwrite off e/ - (21,526) (5,767) (151) (1,639) - (29,083)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale EYEABARELENEE (4411) - (9,114) (1) (220) - (13,856)
Exchange differences EXER (3,416) (17) (39,429) (1,266) (1,210 - (46,038)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N§+ZfA=1-H 64,239 9,615 728,592 32,463 21,174 = 856,083
Carrying amount KafE
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N§+-fA=1-H 142,706 3,697 413,201 8,303 6,464 88,098 662,469
At 31 Decernber 2017 RZE-tF+-A=1-H 199,851 3,553 455,879 8,943 9,382 24,025 701,633

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of property, plant and

equipment pledged as security for the Group's bank loans was nil (2017:

HK$8,624,000).

R-ZZE—N\E+_A=+—8  AEHEK
HAENAE(ZZT—tF 18624,00087L) 2
mE - BERZEDRIFEASEREBIRTT
BB 2 EHqm o
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, following a review of the
actual and planned usage of the machineries of the Group and based
on the actual conditions of the machineries, the Group changed the
estimated useful lives of certain machineries from 10 years to 20 years.
As a result of this change in accounting estimate, the depreciation
charge decreased by approximately HK$12,100,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017.

15.PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

14.903% - BMERRE (&)

HE-_Z—+FE+-_A=+—HBIEE
AEBRBUEERBRARTEERE
WoEE TR ER A F B I0FEE
ER20%F c ARG HEEY - TEER
REE-_ZT—t&+_A=1+—BHLFE
A #912,100,0008 7T °

15. 78 E L b5\

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HKS$'000 HKS$'000

FET FHT

At 1 January n—A—H 157,056 149,862

Additions NE 31,835 =

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments FEAFHIE + 3t Z1 I8 2 # § (4,640) (4,448)

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale BB EDEABIEHENEE (14,557) -

Exchange differences HEH ZER (8,999) 11,642

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 160,695 157,056

Current portion T ENEL (4,432) (4,618)

Non-current portion IERENEL 156,263 152,438
16.GOODWILL 16.H8

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

At 1 January R—A—H 2,740,810 2,540,547

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale BB EHEABIEHENEE (10,703) -

Exchange differences HEH ZR (137,852) 200,263

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 2,592,255 2,740,810
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16.GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying

amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

A BHRARME

16.B8 (&

(B HMRENEE RN ER D K2
BB ERZEBEHNSHeELE
fif - EMRREEER  HEREED K
W

2018 2017

—E-N\fF —ET—+F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHET

Printing of cigarette packages 18 5 4 1R 2,590,947 2,739,433
Manufacturing of transfer paper and B R IEGRRE

laser film 1,308 1,377

2,592,255 2,740,810

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs represent the value in use as
at 31 December 2018 based on business valuation reports prepared
by an independent qualified professional valuer. The valuation used
the discounted cash flow approach based on the cash flow forecasts
with reference to the latest 5-year financial budgets approved by the
Directors. The Group prepared the financial budgets reflecting current
and prior year performances, market development expectations,
including the expected market share and growth momentum, and
where applicable, observable market data. There are a number of
assumptions and estimates involved for the preparation of the budgets,
including an expected average growth rate of 5%, the expected gross
margin at current level, a sustainable growth rate of 5% (2017: 5%), and
a pre-tax discount rate of 14.68% (2017: 14.49%). These assumptions and
estimates are the same as or similar to those used in prior year which are
considered by the management to be reasonable and supportable by
reference to the historical results. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs

were determined to be in excess of their respective carrying amounts.

The management believes that a reasonably possible change in the key
assumption would not cause the recoverable amount to fall below the

carrying value of the respective CGUs.

RAUBSEEBEMNAIKEEER=-F—
NEFE+ZA=+—HANEREEB(ERBL
BEREEAEMRENEBGHERS)
HERAERBESREFANURES R
B UREEEMENETAEYHE
H o ASBRENVBEERYLT A1F
ERE—FENRKE TMHEEREH(BF
TEHIRM MO RERIERE ) - UREAR
AEEMHBEE  REEESRZERS
kG REBHTHERESY - BHE
MEIRERIKT « AFERERESH(ZF—
T 5%) RBATREIRE14.68%(ZF—+
F 11449%) - K2EBRAELE  ZFBE
B ETE F—FEEANBRKEGETER
S EEEBRAZSBREGTBES
B EAEIE o & EEBEALA) A I B E &
EEABBEEE ZREE -

ERERS BREXRVDAEAREDHT

SEYAREEERSEREELEMT
fRHEE -
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17.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

17. RBE QT 2 s

2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET

Unlisted investments: FELEMHE :
Share of net assets, including goodwill EREEFERERE 863,647 131,294
Details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2018 are as follows: R=F—N\F+_A=+—H  ~XEEH

ENE BT

Percentage of

Place of effective interest
incorporation/  Particulars of held/profit
Name operation registered capital sharing Principal activities
a1 1o AV EEai FrisfEzs
=L B3 B BERFE BB B ETEER
Nanjing Sanlong Packing Co., Ltd. PRC UsD2,100,000 48%/48% Printing of cigarette
packages
AR=EEEERAR a3 2,100,000 7T B8 EENR
Qingdao AMVIG Shuncheng Packaging ~ PRC RMB33,000,000 51%/51% (Note) ~ Manufacturing of transfer
Co., Ltd. ("QDAMSC") paper and laser film
FEREHEHEEER AT T AR #633,000,000 51%/51%(FHRE) B MRS IRELE
(IEBIEH])
Yunnan Qiaotong Package Printing PRC USD38,000,000 60%/60% (Note)  Printing of cigarette
Co., Ltd. ("YNQT") packages
TEEBRERNBAERA H 38,000,0003 75 60%/60% (Ffif7E) BSEBRENR
(TEmBEl)
Anhui Qiaofeng Package Printing PRC UsD9,380,000 54.8%/54.8% Printing of cigarette
Co., Ltd. ("AHQF") (Note) packages
ZRBEBERHREGRAA H 9,380,000 7T 54.8%/54.8% ey ctak=32l]
(Tz#BE ) (KEE)
Note: BieE

Although the Group owned more than 50% in QDAMSC, YNQT and AHQF,
QDAMSC, YNQT and AHQF are treated as associates because the Group is only
able to exercise significant influence on the financial and operating policies of
QDAMSC, YNQT and AHQF as a consequence of contractual arrangements with

the other shareholders.
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17.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17. RBEE A B 2 s (F)
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group's share of the THRETASEEEG £ GAEHRER M S I
amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are accounted for TEAMBELNANSE (KAEREA
using the equity method. BR) o
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHERT FAxT
At 31 December: R+t=—A=+-—8:
Carrying amount of interests R AREE 192,641 131,294
Year ended 31 December: BZE+-A=+—-HLEFE:
Profit from continuing operations R EARHES & 575 2 5 A 20,544 16,521
Other comprehensive income Hh 2 HE (10,025) 8,973
Total comprehensive income FZHENEREE 10,519 25,494
As at 31 December 2018, the bank and cash balances of the Group's RZZE—NE+ZA=+—8H x&EBR
associates in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to approximately FEZEE DR AARBSENRITRE
HK$272,360,000 (2017: HK$203,863,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign S EEBA 272,360,000 T (ZF—+H4F -
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations 203,863,00087T) - AR HMAINEAET
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign RENEEHIRBIRAE - SERNES
Exchange Regulations. IR TEFTHR o

173



RRHERREBR AT | AMVIG Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M RA M

17.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table shows information on YNQT that is material to the

Group. This associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial

statements using the equity method. The summarised financial

information presented is based on the HKFRS financial statements of

17.ABERNTF 2R ()

Tﬁ%ﬁ’ilﬁi$&lﬁﬁ§%§£é@ﬁ@a@ﬁ
BEZIEN - ZBERAREGEAVBRR
RATREEAR - T2 % E R
ENREZEEENTEY B RE LY

YNQT. MR ESR
2018
—E-N\F
Principal place of business/country of incorporation DM MR PRC/PRC
HE
Principal activities FEXB Printing of cigarette
packages
& ZE a2 EN
% of ownership interests FrEE#E=E L 60%
HK$’000
FET
At 31 December: R+=—A=+-—-8:
Non-current assets FRBEE 592,138
Current assets MENEE 426,562
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (9,431)
Current liabilities mEEE (291,816)
Net assets FEE 717,453
The Group's share of net assets AEBEEFEE 430,472
Goodwill S 240,534
The Group's share of carrying amount of interests REE RS 2 = REE 671,006
Year ended 31 December: BZE+=-A=+—8:
Turnover e 665,715
Profit from operations 482 | 72,526
Other comprehensive income Efh 2wk (37,613)
Total comprehensive income HEN AT 34,913
Dividends received by the Group from YNQT REBREEBRIEHIF] 21,359
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17.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

YNQT is a strategic investment of the Group, allowing the Group to
increase its presence in the cigarette packages printing market in the
PRC.

No comparative information for the year ended 31 December 2017 was

presented since YNQT was acquired by the Group in January 2018.

A BHRARME

17. R & DB 2 s ()

EEBRNDAKENEBIRE - LRET
VAR hnAS &2 B 15 o B 5 & B K NI T 35 58

fiz °

HRAEER - Z-NE-AKRBEER
B YE2IBE_FT-—tFT A=
—BIEBLEER o

18.0THER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 18.HMERBEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET

Financial assets at FVTOCI UAFEFAEMEEKER 2

(2017: Available-for-sale financial assets) ERMEE(ZT—+HF
AHHEERmEE) 1,571 1,654
Deposits for acquisition of property, WHEMIZE ~ BB REE 2
plant and equipment i) 14,657 16,543
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries WM B AR S - 30,000
16,228 48,197
19.INVENTORIES 19.%78

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R 84,085 94,641
Work in progress ERm 70,169 57,613
Finished goods BURK fh 140,234 123,497
294,488 275,751
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20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20.8 5 & HAth B WK IH

The general credit terms of the Group granted to its trade customers
range from one month to three months. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are

reviewed regularly by the senior management. An aging analysis of trade

AEBETHESIREF ZHRERH—KRNF
—E2=AAR - ARBEBAOFBAEBRKIZDR
BERKNIE SREEETHEEBH
s - B REUR (1IR3 R A H RO R B

receivables, based on the invoice date, net of allowances, is as follows: B) 2R DT -
2018 2017
=ZE-—N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Current to 30 days BNHAZ30H 182,348 403,524
31 to 90 days 312 90H 150,055 278,245
Over 90 days #B3E90 H 74,913 66,773
Trade receivables B 5 EW A 407,316 748,542
Bills receivables K EE 147,163 246,426
Other receivables — associates H AU GRIE — B A A 83,778 57,256
Other receivables — others A fE U FRIE — B 13,241 22,234
651,498 1,074,458

An analysis of allowance for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables is

as follows:

fRET AT T E 5 e YOk TE 2 B 5 AT 1A
T~

HKS$'000

FHET
At 1 January 2017 RZFE—+tF—H—H 58
Impairment losses recognised for the year FAERBEERE 5015
Amounts written off during the year FAMESE (4,404)
Exchange differences b H Z5E 28
At 31 December 2017 R_ZB—+tF+—_HA=+—H 697
Reversals for the year FREE (76)
Exchange differences EH Z% (31)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZFE-—NF+=-A=+—H 590
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21.CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES

B MR EE

21.6WEBE BHNAE

31 December 2018 1 January 2018*

= Sy - N
+=g=+-8 —B—8"
Contract assets EREE HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAxT

Arising from performance under printing ELXASEEREHRBIEL
of cigarette packages 37,157 73,912

Amounts relating to contract assets are balances due from customers
under the contracts that arise when the Group receives payments
from customers in line with a series of performance related milestones.
Payment for printing of cigarette packages is not due from the customer
until the goods are delivered and therefore a contract asset is recognised
over the period in which the goods are delivered to represent the

entity’s right to consideration for the goods delivered to date.

There was no revenue recognised during the year from performance

obligations satisfied in previous periods.

Significant change in contract assets during the year was primarily
because the amount of revenue recognised exceeded the amounts

transferred to trade receivables.

HANBEERENSRERARERE
5 B2 AE R ER B P BT R
RELNEBREFANKE REVX
NZal TBFEFXNHRESERKNE
B AN EEARSY RN HMER -
URKRBEBESRIEZFEAINENH R
BRI o

FATEERENERETKBLOREE
A -

FARHNEENEREH T ERANER
WENeREREBEREIREFIANS
25

31 December 2018 1 January 2018*

—2-N\F —T-N\F
+=g=+-8 —B—8"
Contract liabilities EHEE HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Receipts in advance of performance RIETTEIR S B
obligation under printing of ABHEERTERE A
cigarette packages 5,084 645
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21.

22.

178

CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(continued)

Contract liabilities relating to printing of cigarette packages are payment
from customers received in advance of the performance obligations

under the contracts.

The amounts of revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2018 that were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the year are HK$645,000.

As a practical expedient, the Group does not disclose its remaining
performance obligations as all related contracts have a duration of less

than one year.

*  This amount in this column is after the adjustments from the application of
HKFRS 15.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND
CASH BALANCES

Bank deposits of approximately HK$486,795,000 (2017: HK$562,005,000)
carry fixed interest rates ranging from 1.4% to 3.4% (2017: 1.4% to 3.4%)
thus exposing the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Bank deposits
of approximately HK$790,637,000 (2017: HK$682,054,000) carry floating
interest rates thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group's pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to banks

to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 34).

Included in the pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances is
an amount of approximately HK$1,241,244,000 (2017: HK$935,593,000)
as at 31 December 2018 denominated in RMB and kept in the PRC.
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale

and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

Q1.8 EBE SHEa’ (&)

SERKNRBEBNEGNBERERTA
WEEZARE 2B P HIE -

REBEE_ZT—NF+_A=+HLFER
RIEFAFIUz2EHNBEZRESEA
645,000/ 7T °

B L AKREXRFEHRFGAE—
FHRDEME -

* AHREERRAEBMBREENF 155K
HFRRZ S -

R.EEARTERRRTRAE

REER

#9486,795,0008 L (ZF — £ 4F
562,005,000/ 70 ) Z RITIFRIRN F1.4% %
34%( =B —+4F : 1.4% % 3.4%) 7 B F =&
PR MASEEHAFAEMNERR - 4
790,637,000/ 7T (= Z —+4F : 682,054,000
BT ZIRITERIRFBF R L - MAE
EEHReREMNERR AEEZBEH
MRITERREERTRITZFR - UIE
RETAEBRITEE 2B (FizE34)

FIABEBRITERARRITERE e EH 2
RERE—BR-_Z-N\F+-A=+
—H#91,241,244,0008 7T (Z T — L& :
935,593,000 7L ) 2 ARKEFRIE - HZKIA
FERTE ARBHRGAINEAZHE
SNEE IR B R AEE - EERMNEEER
TEFTHR ©
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23.ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

A BHRARME

B.IERFFEHENEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
THET FHT
Assets related to a subsidiary of the Group — E2ZNEE & —[E B A RIHEREA
(Note) BE (M) 127,434 =
Liabilities directly associated with assets HOBARELENEERRE
classified as held for sale HEENEE 30,116 -

Note:

On 22 November 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
whereby it has conditionally agreed to dispose of its 60% equity interests in
a subsidiary of the Group to the other shareholder at a cash consideration of
approximately RMB72.5 million. The disposal is conditional upon, among other
things, all necessary approvals from the relevant government authorities (except
for the change of registration with the State Administration for Industry and
Commerce of the PRC) are being obtained. As the consideration is higher than the
Group's interests in the carrying amount of the net assets of a subsidiary of the
Group, no impairment loss was recognised by the Group neither on reclassification
of the assets and liabilities as held for sale nor as at 31 December 2018. The major
classes of assets and liabilities of a subsidiary of the Group which is related to
printing of cigarette packages segment at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

FEE

RZEBE—-NE+—A=Z+=H A£EEITIE
EE - BUBRGEREUARSREBEHARE
72,500,0007T & H A A& B — M E A F1#Y60%
RiEFS—MRKRER - HESHEAFIE (Eda
FEVEERFRENESNEME (FRERIE
THREBBRBMNEEELHRIN) - ARESHRA
SERASEE —HNBARERNEERTFE
Mg BN - N\F+-A=1+—BAxHH
EHENEERBBETESER AEETE
ERREEE - RREHKR - B5EREDR S
HEENAEE —HHBAREEEERAER
BlEAR :

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FExT
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 62,571
Prepaid land lease payments TE T E - Hb R IE 14,557
Goodwill RS 10,703
Other non-current assets HAiIERBEE 716
Inventories FE 23,774
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E e IE 14,004
Prepayments and deposits ENFEBERES 215
Bank and cash balances RITRIR B AR 894
Assets of a subsidiary of the Group classified as held for sale D EAFIELENANEE —HHBRARNEE 127,434
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMERNKIE 24,740
Current tax liabilities AT IEE & 1,111
Bank borrowings RITEK 3,416
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 849
Liabilities of a subsidiary of the Group associated with HBAEARELENEEERARN
assets classified as held for sale AEE—FENBRRMNARE 30,116
Net assets of a subsidiary of the Group classified as held AEAFELENAEE —BIB AT
for sale FEE 97,318
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

25.

180

24 B 5 R E B RIR

An aging analysis of trade payables, based on the date of invoices, is as

B RMNFIREREZRH) 2 R D7 10

follows: S
2018 2017
—=E-N\F S
HK$'000 HKS$'000
THERT FHT
Current to 30 days BUEAZE30H 287,766 284,605
31 to 90 days 31E90H 243,664 235,343
Over 90 days @90 H 138,958 135,259
Trade payables B SR RIA 670,388 655,207
Bills payables JiEANE L 48,699 =
Dividend payable FETAR B 10 10
Other payables H bt 518 189,908 173,950
909,005 829,167
BANK BORROWINGS 25. R 1TERK
2018 2017
—Z-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHT
Bank loans — unsecured RITE R — A 1,762,292 1,466,760
Bank loans — secured RITER—BER - 3,597
1,762,292 1,470,357
The loans are repayable as follows: BEREBBEAT
On demand or within one year BERFIN—FNA - 3,597
In the second year F_F 1,762,292 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoFEZFAF (BIEEREMTE) - 1,466,760
1,762,292 1,470,357
Amount due for settlement within 12 months + —1& A R Z| HA(& & 2B
(shown under current liabilities) (RRBAaEERIIR) - (3,597)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months + — 1@ B 1 2| HAE & 78 1,762,292 1,466,760
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25.BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 25. 8B 1T ER ()

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank loans are denominated in the AEBBOTERZEEERATEEHE !

following currencies:

2018 2017
=ZE-—N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
HKS BT 1,762,292 1,466,760
RMB ARHE - 3,597
1,762,292 1,470,357
The effective interest rates at 31 December were as follows: R+ZA=+—RHZ2EEF=DT :
2018 2017
—Z-N\F —E—tF
Bank loans — unsecured RITE R — EIKH 4.17% - 4.18% 3.12%
Bank loans — secured fﬁﬁféf?i BHE N/A 11.88%
FER
Bank loans of nil (2017: HK$3,597,000) are arranged at the fixed interest & (=T —+F 3,597,000 70 ) SRITE IR
rates and expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Other bank .Eﬂfﬁzﬁ&@i$’i.7%*"\1@7“]1
loans are arranged at floating rates thus exposing the Group to cash B o EMIRITTEFIRZBMELH - A
flow interest rate risk. lﬁtzﬁﬁ BB fﬁﬁ?/lbiﬁ:utﬂ @ ©
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26.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December:

26 0TESRMI AR AR EE

RTZA=+—BRAFEFEZEER
afR:

2018 2017
ST Sy et
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Financial assets SRMEE
Derivative financial instruments under @A TZ2iTEEmI A
hedge accounting
Cash flow hedges - CCS REMEEH — XX B8 5 12,553 -
Analysed as: DA
Non-current assets IEMBNE E 12,553 =
Financial liabilities SRBE
Derivative financial instruments under HHEHETZTESmIA
hedge accounting
Cash flow hedges — CCS Rensfh - XEMK=H 21,954 34,978
Analysed as: DR
Current liabilities nRBEE 17,496 14,291
Non-current liabilities JEmEatE 4,458 20,687
21,954 34,978

The carrying amounts of the CCS are the same as their fair values.

Cash flow hedges

Since the functional currency of the Group is Renminbi, whereas a
substantial amount of its bank borrowings were denominated in
HKS, the Group has foreign currency exposure on HKS related to its
bank borrowings. At the same time, the Group has exposure to cash
flow risk of its variable rate HKS bank borrowings. At the end of the
reporting period, the following CCS contracts are designated as hedging
instruments in respect of such foreign currency and interest rate

exposure.
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26.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 6.NTEESMIARAFEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (#%&)
Cash flow hedges (continued) BEREEH (Z
The terms of the CCS contracts have been negotiated to match the X B2 B & QGRS ERE A& 8 1E
terms of the respective designated hedged items. E’JTEE%M”IE ERES

ZEANEBIEZEIINT

Major terms of these contracts are as follows:

Notional amount Maturity Foreign currency swaps Interest rate swaps
AREH E|HH s g2l

2018

—E2-N\F

HK$200,000,000 From 28 March 2017 to HK$1.1280/RMB1 HKS1 month HIBOR+1.5%

200,000,000/ 7T

HK$200,000,000

200,000,000/ 7T

HK$400,000,000
400,000,000 7T
2017
—E—F

HK$200,000,000

200,000,000 7T

HK$200,000,000

200,000,000/ 7T

13 February 2020
H-Z—tF=A=-+N\H
Z_T_ZTHF_F+=H

From 28 April 2017 to
13 February 2020
BH-_E—+FMHA=-+N\R
—E-EF-_A+=H

From 30 July 2018 to
13 February 2020
H-ZT—N\FLtHA=+H
2T THF_H+=H

From 28 March 2017 to
13 February 2020

BB LF=A= 1/
E-E-TF-HA+=H

From 28 April 2017 to
13 February 2020
m=F—EFMA=+/\A
ZE_E_TF_A+=H

11280770,/ AREE1 T

HK$1.1243/RMB1

1124370,/ AR T

HKS$1.1716/RMB1

11716778,/ AREE1 T

HK$1.1280/RMB1

1128070, ARE 17T

HKS$1.1243/RMB1

11243770,/ AR 1T

for 6.19%
B —EABBRITREZE
HEN1.5%E26.19% 5 #

HKS$1 month HIBOR+1.5%
for 5.90%

B —EREBRITRZE
HrBN1.5%E25.900% B 4

HKS$1 month HIBOR+1.5%
for 5.00%

Br—EAEBRITAZE
PrBENN1.5%E25.00% B &

HKS1 month HIBOR+1.5%
for 6.19%

BT —EREERITRZE
B IN1.5%E26.19% 5 #4

HKS$1 month HIBOR+1.5%
for 5.90%

Br—EABEBRITAZE
HrE01.5%E25.90% B #
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26.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 260 TEERMIARAFETE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (#&

Cash flow hedges (continued) BREeERSE A (E)

During the current year, fair value loss of HK$7,912,000 (2017: RAERA 7,912,000 T (ZF—+HF
HK$10,090,000) have been recognised in other comprehensive income 10,090,000/ 7L) 2 A EBIEBEREMEE
and accumulated in the hedging reserve and are expected to be W ERIW R E R FEEAN R - MIEEZ
reclassified to profit or loss at various dates in the coming two years FRNTEBEERREHEERERE (=
(2017: coming three years) after the end of the reporting period, the T—tF  B=F)EHNEEER (AIE
period in which the repayment of bank borrowings and interests are HMEERRITERENEZEME) -

expected to occur.
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26.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
Cash flow hedges (continued)

The following table provides a reconciliation of the hedging reserve and

shows the effectiveness of the hedging relationships:

A BHRARME

26T EMIARATFEFNE
(%)
BHE&RE¥ h (&

TREINEHFEERE - WHRREHE
B2 EHIE

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
THERT FHET
At 1 January n—A—8 (10,090) =
Effective portion of the cash flow hedges REMELH P 2 BHEBD
recognised in other comprehensive income R E {2 W SR IER 7,209 (47,144)
Amounts reclassified to profit or loss EHOHGTABRZEH
(Note (i) (BRE) (15,121) 37,054
At 31 December (Note (ii)) R+=A=+—8 (FaEi) (18,002) (10,090)
Change in fair value of the CCS FARXEBEIZ
during the year N EEE 7,209 (47,144)
Effective portion of the cash flow hedges MEMEE A 2 BREBH
recognised in other comprehensive R EL A 2 T W s R TR
income (Note (jii)) (HtEEGin) 7,209 (47,144)
Notes: Pt aE

(i) During the year, gains and losses transferred from equity to profit or loss
are included in other operating expenses of approximately HK$32,734,000
(2017: other income of approximately HK$24,888,000) and finance costs of
approximately HK$17,613,000 (2017: HK$12,166,000).

(i) The entire balance in the hedging reserve relates to continuing hedges.

(i) There was no hedge ineffectiveness recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the years.

() RERN - BREFEREEERE 2 REREBER
FFAE M AR LRI 4/532,734,000/8 T (=&
—+F - 2 A 497524,888,000/8 7T ) K& @t
BRAH 176130008 (ZE—+F : &
U A 49712,166,00058 7T ) ©

(i) HMREEHZDIRRESELDEMH -

(iii) EZ:EJ*WIEHE"%?%TE IR RERR T I R

E‘ér
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26.

186

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categories into three levels

the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:
Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any
of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances

that caused the transfer.

26.5THEEMIARATE

El‘l_f

%
(&)
AFEHE

RFERTHLEENFERMEERFX
ZHHEEETRRKRAEEAGAIL
NZE® - U TR FEAERELRAS
RRFEAFEZEETEZBHABEE D
REBZ A THERBED

F—RBABE  RAERHAKEAIA
RMENEREEXBEREEMS 2 RE
(REHRE) °

E_RBABE REEXBBEEERNKME
BEHABRZBABE(F-RABRNR
BERIM) o

FZRBABE  EELRENTABRER
BWABUR °

AEBEMBRE RN LEE O FFRXER
(LB 2 BRI AL (E (T3 BB R
B AT ELEH -



26.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements (continued)
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The following table presents the level in fair value hierarchy, valuation

techniques and inputs used:

26

A BHRARME

TTEEMITARATFETE

(&

ATFAEE ()
TREINQFESER - BETERMER
A8 AR

Fair value at 31 December

Rt=A=+-B2ATE

Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
5E & BE afE
2018 2017
Fair value  Valuation —E-N\E —E—tF
hierarchy  techniques Inputs HK$'000 HK$'000
DNVEER HEFE BARE FTHERT TET
Recurring fair value measurements:
REMATETE
Financial assets and liabilities
CREEREE:
Derivative financial instruments
TESRMIA
Cash flow hedges - CCS Level 2 Discounted ~ Market interest rates 12,553 21,954 - 34,978
ReREL R - XX EK=H E_M cash flow (i.e. HIBOR) and
method foreign exchange
WRBFEE rates for RMB

and HK$

S E (NEE
RITRIZEFFEFE)
RARMERAETH
S|\ [ =

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were no

transfer of fair value measurement between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3

for the financial assets and liabilities.

BE_ 22— \Fk_ZE—CtF+_A=+
—BLFE SREEABEE— R F
“HRBE=ZFEZATFEAEL EER -
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27.DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27 RERIRE B
The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group. TRAAEEMER ZIELEHIBEE
Revaluation
of property,
plantand Withholding
equipment tax Total
EXET/E
BE R & BNBiE et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET FET
At 1 January 2017 R=ZE—tF—H—H 7,425 5,141 12,566
Payment (NE = (34,892) (34,892)
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss (Rt AiE%) B8z (557) 32,627 32,070
Exchange differences PEH =5 565 318 883
At 31 December 2017 R-B—tF+-HA=+—H 7,433 3,194 10,627
Acquisition of associates L B st 28 2 A - 6,474 6,474
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale WERESEARBELENEE
(Note 23) (H¥&E23) (849) - (849)
Payment BN - (18,905) (18,905)
Charge to profit or loss EEEEREICS 957 14,567 15,524
Exchange differences MEHER (413) (311) (724)
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-N\E+=A=+—H 7,128 5,019 12,147

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$58,681,000 (2017: HK$50,857,000) available

for offsetting against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been

recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included

in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately HK$47,948,000

(2017: HK$43,168,000) that will expire in five years. Other tax losses may

be carried forward indefinitely.
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27.DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued) 27 EEBEEE (F)
At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax liabilities of RmEER  REMBARRD RAFE
approximately HK$58,612,000 (2017: HK$54,371,000) have not been BTN ERENABRZECRIEAELY
recognised in respect of the temporary differences associated with 7$58,612,000/8 7T (==& — 4 : 54,371,000
undistributed profits of subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend BIT) - A RS BPEG E B A R ARSI
policy of its subsidiaries and it has been determined that these REBTEZEARDE GHAER RAREKTE
undistributed profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. DK ©
28.SHARE CAPITAL PERZS
Number of shares Amount
BRHOEE -]
‘000 HKS$'000
TR FHT
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BiREE.0 BT 2 E B
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 RIB—+FRZZE-N\F
+=-A=+—H 2,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITRHE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FIEE.0 BT 2 EB
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 RZE—tF—H—H-
and 31 December 2018 —E—+F+-_A=+—HK
—NE+=-A=+—8 929,047 9,290
Capital management EER
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the AEBERESC EERAREASEES
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the ?ET%%E@% ERE 28N - WiBEBE
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and B = AR B =R o

equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group AEBESFRBRIERLEORERETSEE o &K
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light SERFEBEMRALEL RABEE 2 RAR
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the BEEEEEAEBREL AR - B
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the NTFHBEREE  AEEAEERAERBKR
Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back AT 2B B BITHR - BERG &5
shares, raise new debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce W& BRRABERHNLEEENERE
debts. % o
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28.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted-capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital,
share premium, non-controlling interests, retained profits and other

reserves) other than debit amounts recognised in equity.

During 2018, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged since 2007,
was to maintain a capital structure with a lowest weighted average cost
of capital. The debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio at 31 December 2018 and
at 31 December 2017 were 10.1% and 4.6% respectively.

28. A& (&

ExEE(E)

AEERBEEFACHABREA L XERE
A BRALETIAEBFEGALHAES
AEtE - BHFRASAERRREE MRS
EEMHE - RRABELABEEDA
7 (IR ~ BB - JFERIE s - R
Baf B REMER)  ERERERZ
RS BRERIN ©

“E-NFFRN AEBZRB(BZEE
tER—ERE)  DHEF—EERNEF
HARAEREEKFEZERGERE - RZF
—N\F+—A=+—Bk=E—tF+=
R=+—B2EBELHEERLES R
£10.1% % 4.6% °

2018 2017
= % —E—LfF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FBxT FiIT

Total borrowings BIER 1,762,292 1,470,357

Less: cash and cash equivalents B HeRBEeEEY (1,270,781) (1,242,769)
Net debt ERIFRE 491,511 227,588
Total equity T 4ATE 3,988,763 4,058,628
Add: debit amounts recognised in equity o iR ER IR &5 859,033 851,121
Adjusted capital KRB R 4,847,796 4,909,749
Debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio (& 75 BLAT A B2 & AN b R 10.1% 4.6%
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28. A& (&

Capital management (continued) E€EE(F)
The increase in the debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio during 2018 resulted RZZ—N\F - EHEABRRERN L RIE

primarily from increase in total borrowings.

INE 2 R R AR FILINFTEL

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to INERFEMN 2 E—BABRAAEEBE RGN 2
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float NRIFREZDAEIY » LA ENEBER
of at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a report from the share Fre Emitifs - REEEERHEERN
registrars weekly on substantial share interests showing the non-public BPECLRBATIEAREREZEANRN
float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit Balms  EERERTAEEREESF
throughout the year. As at 31 December 2018: 52.4% (2017: 52.4%) of B EET%REZHEE - R=ZF —

the shares were in public hands.

NE+—A=+—H :524%( =T —+tF :
524%) M AARALTHE -
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29.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

192

29. 78X B 2 R R R

COMPANY
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
No\te HK$'000 HK$'000
k= FRT FET
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBARZRE 1 1
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMIA 12,553 =
Total non-current assets FREBEELE 12,554 1
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries LBt /88 22 R 3K I8 4,549,152 4,147,220
Pledged bank deposit BHERBRITER 4,619 =
Bank and cash balances RITRA TR 7,875 295,853
Other current assets HimB & E 1,765 5,125
Total current assets REEEHAE 4,563,411 4,448,198
TOTAL ASSETS BEELE 4,575,965 4,448,199
EQUITY Ei
Capital and reserves BAR
Share capital A 9,290 9,290
Reserves & 30(b) 2,775,230 2,928,857
Total equity R 2,784,520 2,938,147
LIABILITIES &
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITIAR 1,762,292 1,466,760
Derivative financial instruments TESBMTA 4,458 20,687
Total non-current liabilities FREBEELE 1,766,750 1,487,447
Current liabilities nRBEE
Derivative financial instruments fTEemITA 17,496 14,291
Other current liabilities Hivnga i 7,199 8314
Total current liabilities REEEEE 24,695 22,605
Total liabilities EE%E 1,791,445 1,510,052
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EnREBRE 4,575,965 4,448,199
Net current assets REBEEFE 4,538,716 4,425,593
Total assets less current liabilities BEEABERRBER 4,551,270 4,425,594
Approved by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2019 and are signed on R-BE-—NF=ZA+RABEESTSHUET
its behalf by: BTIIIREKEE
Ge Su Liu Shun Fai
B BrE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEE



30.RESERVES

(a)

Group
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30.f#% &

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein are

presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

(a) NEH

fre e

=4

RR BT E

AEEZHFESBREBEDHHRN T
FHEEREMBEEKERRGAER

comprehensive income and consolidated statement of changes in FEpk o
equity.
Company (b) &RAF]
Employee Foreign
share-based currency
Share compensation Hedging translation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
DRBE A2 SHE
RAEE EEMERE - BHEE RERE  REEN by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TR TR TR TR
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—tF-A—H 2517392 19220 - 157,491 5216 2,699,319
Total comprehensive income for the year AR 2 BN EE - - (10,090) 216,987 123908 330,805
Dividend paid for 2016 YRZF-R~ERE - - - - (30659) (30659)
Dividend paid for 2017 (Note 13) INZZE—HERE (F13) - - - = (70,608) (70,608)
Transfer of reserve upon lapse of BRI KA M R R
share options - (16,731) - - 16,731 -
Changes in equity for the year REERRE - (16,731) (10,090) 216,987 39372 229,538
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+ZA=1-H 2,517,392 2,489 (10,090) 374,478 44,588 2,928,857
Total comprehensive income for the year  AFEZAREEE - - (7.912) (149,123) 145,552 (11,483)
Dividend paid for 2017 (Note 13) YRZF-ERE (H3E13) - - - - (67,820) (67,820)
Dividend paid for 2018 (Note 13) SHZE-NERE (FE13) - - - - (74,324) (74,324)
Changes in equity for the year TEEERE - - (7912)  (149,123) 3,408 (153,627)
At 31 December 2018 R=F-\F+-A=1+-A 2,517,392 2,489 (18,002) 225,355 47,996 2,775,230
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30.RESERVES (continued)

194

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in
the share premium account of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(ii) Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group comprises (a) the amount
that arose as a result of the reorganisation implemented and
represented the difference between the nominal value of the
aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore; and
(b) the excess of the fair value of consideration payable for
the acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries over the

decrease in the carrying value of the non-controlling interests.

(iii) Employee share-based compensation reserve

The employee share-based compensation reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to directors and employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for employee share-based compensation benefits in Note 3(l)

to the consolidated financial statements.

(iv) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging instruments
used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition
of the hedged cash flows in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for cash flow hedges in Note 3(w) to the

consolidated financial statements.

30.f#%& (&)
(€) BB MERBN
(i) R =E

(ii)

RIEFHSHEREE - AABRN
HBERZESAHRDIKTARAR
R ESZREEFES RS AR
AARBBENEEELNAFEER
BERCDEHZET -

HE#

AEBEZERIREEEEGQRET
BAMELNFIALERIBEEHEMN
Wi P8 2 Rl AR AR 2 (B RE B AR
RAAB R ET 2 RAEE
ZERE > Rb)ENHEKBHER
Bl BIMER R E A EBBIFE
Bl SRR (ER D 2 5

(iii) ZIRG3 1 2 IBE BN 1o 1

PABR 9 32 5 2 1 B BN & & f 1R AR 1%
BLAR B B 75 R M R 3 () AR 1D 2
2 18 B B 58 FI P SR AN B0 & 51 IR
RER  RTAEEEERESH
ATEEBREZERSMGABEZ
NFE -

(iv) ¥t 7%

HhFEERERERELITER
ZEHTARFEZRFTEEHFER
BREn - AR ERER
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30.RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v) Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in

Note 3(d)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements.

(vi) Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents the Group's share of
associates’ post-acquisition movements in revaluation reserve
and is dealt in accordance with accounting policy in Note 3(c)

to the consolidated financial statements.

(vii)Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves, which are non-distributable, are
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries under the applicable laws and regulations in the
PRC.

31.EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
BENEFITS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees, directors, substantial
shareholders of each member, associates of directors or substantial
shareholders and trustees of any trust pre-approved by the Board of the
Company and the Company'’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective
on 16 June 2014 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will

remain in force for 10 years from that date.

A BHRARME

30.1#%14& (&)
(€) BB HERBN(£)
(v) SN Z e

SN R R R BT A R E SN R
B MR MEL < BEXZH
ZEBIHRBEES HBRRME
3(d)Gi) PRSI 2 & At R BRI -

(vi) E1G1#

EhFHEEARERGEZ AR
BReEMGREESY  LRESE
ISR M A3 (OB BT BERE
8

(vii) S E 1A 1
TR 2 ET BN AERY
HENBEARRETRBAEER
SERABBREEFID o

BNLURGO X2 EEMEEF

AR A E RV B IR et &8

ApRET-EBRESE ([518)) - §
ERHAKBEBRMIELERZAER
SHEERHYBRER EERSEER
BERERARZERERBES &% -
TERR BEZBHEAXTERRREA
ARRARARRMBARIZERTSTALIE
ZIEFANZFEA - FEER T —HFR
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31.

196

EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
BENEFITS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

No share option was granted under the Scheme after it was approved.

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 10 March 2004
(the 2004 Scheme") expired on 9 March 2014, however, the outstanding
share options granted under 2004 Scheme shall continue to be valid and
exercisable during the prescribed exercise period in accordance with
2004 Scheme.

Details of the share options outstanding under 2004 Scheme during the

year are as follows:

BMUBROD XN Z2EEMEEF

(&)
DREEE B IRET 8 (&)
R B EAR IR B L (T BB -

RARR-ZZTWME= A+ BERANER
s ([ —Z2THFFHEDE_FT—HF
ZANABERH - A RE_FTMF
AHEIFTR B R ARTTENBREDRER
I AR — T E M IR E M 1T EH

T o

FRE_ZFTMOFAEATHARTRZER

BT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
share average share average

options exercise price

options exercise price

InREF 14 s

BRESE TEE  EREHE T8

HK$ HK$

BT 7SI

At 1 January w—A—H 1,794,949 3.64 13,287,701 3.64
Lapsed during the year RE R KK - - (11,492,752) =
At 31 December Wn+=—A=+—8” 1,794,949 3.64 1,794,949 3.64
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ RAEXRA] T17{# 1,794,949 3.64 1,794,949 3.64

The options were fully vested to the grantees as of 31 December
2018.

Options will be lapsed if the employees leave the Group.

No share options were exercised during the year. The options
outstanding at the end of the reporting period have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 2.58 years (2017: 3.58 years)
and the exercise price is HK$3.64 (2017: HKS3.64).

HE_ZT—-N\F+T-_A=+—H  Ek#E
ETEHEARA °

HEREBBEFAARE  BREKSRY -

B R R AT (8 2 i BUHE 2 N4 P A IR & 4

FHIA258F (ZF—+HF :3.58F)  17{&
BAR364BTL(ZT—+HF :3648IT) ©
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32.NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows

were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

A BHRARME

RGERTREBRME

METHELEZEBHER

TRA/FAEERETHELEZEEEDF
B BREECKIRSEY  REIZDE
EZ7RBEDRBEeREIZ KRS RER
FEEZHRERERERDBERBMELH
REREZBEE -

Bank borrowings (Note 25)
$RATIE K (BfEE25)

2018 2017

—Z-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

At 1 January Rn—A—H 1,470,357 2,001,285

Cash flows RenE 285,200 (539,298)
Transfer to liabilities directly associated EREESERFHELEN

with assets classified as held for sale BEEEHEBENEE (3,416) =

Interest expenses B (53,408) (30,287)

Amortised cost BIHA AR 63,812 39,368

Exchange differences MEHZR (253) (711)

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 1,762,292 1,470,357
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33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group had the following material related party

transactions during the year:

3B.HEAEALTRS

(@) MRUELFLHRAMBREREMEBD A
CARBERAFEEGETUATE
AR5

=Rl
PN}

®E

2018 2017

—2-n% oy B

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FERT FAT

Purchases from associates kNS 258,056 235,020

Note: The purchases from associates were made under normal commercial

terms.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

BMYRE - MBS A BRI DR E — AR &

FETT ©

(b) TZEEAEMNFHE

The key management personnel of the Company comprised all ARBIMEFEERABBEMEBEE
directors, details of their remuneration are disclosed in Note 9 to = HE WAL E M REM
the consolidated financial statements. FREE o
(c) At the end of the reporting period, the following balances with () RBEHBMGERE - THHEALTZ
related parties were included in: EERTIA
2018 2017
—E2-N\F S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade and other receivables: B 5 R E h FEUFIE
Associates NG| 83,778 57,256
Trade and other payables: 5 R E A ERR
Associates Hs =N 65,815 65,789
The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, interest-free FEUR / FEfTEE & A T F B A EIEH .
and have no fixed terms of repayment. % B R EEF fﬂ%ﬁ
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A BHRARME

34.BANKING FACILITIES 34.8R1T15 &

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, banking facilities of the Group are
mainly secured by the charge over certain bank deposits (Note 22),
property, plant and equipment (Note 14), personal guarantee given by
independent third parties and corporate guarantees given by certain

subsidiaries and an independent third party.

RZBE-NFERZE—tF+A=+—
=] $%l2ﬁﬁﬁ§£ E FRITF
(HIEE22) - W3 - BB RakfE (HEE14)
ZER - BUE=FRBEZAAERRSE
THEBARR —EBIYE=FRHEZAQF
EARIEIE IR o

35.COMMITMENTS 35. 7K E

As at 31 December 2018 the Group had the following commitments:

(@) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases certain of its office and factory premises under
operating lease arrangements. The original lease terms for the office

and factory premises range from one year to ten years.

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

“E-NF+ZA=+—H xEEZ
%%WT:

) EEHERE

ANEERBEKLEHELHARE T
RERBEDE - EENAERKE
MEZFRAENT—ZE+F -

RBTAHEEEHEAINZARAR
RIEESEBENAT

2018 2017

—ZE-N\F —T—+F

HKS$'000 HKS$'000

FET FET

Within one year — R 13,087 12,433
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ E-_FZFAF (BIEEEMF) 29,378 44,072
After five years hFi& - 909
42,465 57,414
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35.

36.

37.

200

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Capital commitments

35.7 & (&

(b) BEAEIE

2018 2017
—E-N\E S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Contracted but not provided for: BERTHB R -
Acquisition of property, BEWE
plant and equipment 5 K & 123,723 37,662

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (2017: Nil).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has two reportable segments under HKFRS 8 as follows:

- Printing of cigarette packages

- Manufacturing of transfer paper and laser film

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer
different products. They are managed separately because each business

requires different technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those
described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment

profits or losses do not include corporate administrative expenses.

Segment assets do not include goodwill, derivative financial instruments,
financial assets at FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale financial assets),
corporate bank balances, prepayments and deposits and other
receivables for general administrative use. Segment liabilities do not
include bank borrowings, other payables and accruals for general

administrative use and derivative financial instruments.

36.AREE

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H AEEW
BEAEAXAAE (T —LF &) -

37. 7 #EF

AEEREEMBREENFSHROBAT
SIME 2D H6

— SEBENR
— EBAKRENREE

AREZTLHD BARHETAER L
B ST AT o P SR B R R 2 B
BB ERR - MRS ERVBLER -

@RS BN HEERGA N BREME
SR — B - 5 EIRR T BIER R TR
B -

DHEBEETBREAE TESRTAE &
NFHEFAREMEEREZEREE (ZF
—tF  AHEESREE)  CERITHE
7% BANFERREE-RTEAEZE
b EURIR - DEEEBENBEBRITER
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37.SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 37.0WER (&)
Information about reportable segment profit, assets and liabilities: EHEAZEHROF 2 u5F  BERBECE
¥

Manufacturing ~ Manufacturing

Printing of Printing of of transfer of transfer
cigarette Cigarette paper and paper and
packages packages laser film laser film Total Total
EBER EVLR
EEEEON sEexdR  ERESE  S9REE by @it
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\E ZE—tf BN\ ZTtF —E-N\E ZT—tf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
THT T TEL THL THET THr
Year ended 31 December HREt-A=1t-HLEE
Revenue from external customers — RESNFEF 2 Kzs 2,476,805 2,416,802 25,860 31,514 2,502,665 2448316
Segment profit PEb T 548,298 485,867 2,199 5216 550,497 491,083
Interest income FIEHA 14,220 11,957 200 39 14,420 12,286
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (80,077) (77753) (464) (415) (80,541) (78168)
Share of profits of associates FEREEE A RRT 61,923 13417 2137 3,104 64,060 16,521
Income tax expenses GRS (103,364) (96,89) (30) (431) (103,394) (97,327)
Additions to segment REDDERBEE
non-current assets 173,787 68,767 95 572 173,882 69,339
As at 31 December R+=B=1+-8
Segment assets PEEE 3,533,740 3169028 65,282 68321 3,599,022 3,237,349
Segment liabilities PEEE (889,461) (847,989) (1,870) (3772) (891,331) (851761)
Interests in associates iNAYNGI WA 587,548 96,005 35,565 35,289 623,113 131,204
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37.SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B 2o Bz  BENBEZY
B
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Profit or loss B
Total profit or loss of reportable segments 7] 23R 5 2B18 54458 550,497 491,083
Other profit or loss Hipigs (223,372) (88,434)
Consolidated profit for the year fRa AEE RN 327,125 402,649
Assets EE
Total assets of reportable segments A2WmHEEERTE 3,599,022 3,237,349
Goodwill EES 2,592,255 2,740,810
Financial assets at FVTOC| (2017: Available- A EFF AR EZEE T2
for-sale financial assets) SRMEE(ZZE—LF:
AR ESREE) 1,571 1,654
Assets classified as held for sale DERFELENEE 127,434 -
Other assets Hibh &= 435,031 459,158
Consolidated total assets A BEERE 6,755,313 6,438,971
Liabilities =N
Total liabilities of reportable segments AZWmo A B FEER (891,331) (851,761)
Liabilities directly associated with assets HAOBARIEHENEE
classified as held for sale BEERBHAE (30,116) =
Other liabilities Hih &g (1,845,103) (1,528,582)
Consolidated total liabilities fre BEERE (2,766,550) (2,380,343)
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37.SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information:

Over 90% of the Group's revenue and assets are derived from customers
and operations based in the PRC and accordingly, no further analysis of

the Group's geographical information is disclosed.

37.0 8P ER (&)
EEE

A BHRARME

REEBRKEREERAUNTEZE
PRzk FAtEE-PREAEELZ

HWEER DT o

Revenue from major customers: REEXERF 2z
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET

Printing of cigarette packages B IR B R

Customer A EFEH 503,144 523,830
Customer B BEZ 439,162 493,140
Customer C 2FA 328,106 313,962
Customer D EFET 260,523 323,036
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38.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. T EMBEAT
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as RZZE—NEF+A=+—H ZEZWESB
follows: NAEFFMAT :
Issued and fully
Place of incorporation/ paid-up share capital/ Percentage of ownership
Name registration and operation  registered capital interest/profit sharing Principal activities
BEARAR EkEaRE /
£ HRAY/ ERREELS  RE/ERER bgilt V=Rl IEEH
Direct Indirect
E# 5824
AMVIG Group Limited British Virgin Islands ("BVI") Ordinary HK$1,000 100% - Investment holding
AREEBRAF RERUES EER1,000ET REZR
(ZBEXES))

AMVIG Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS6,060,100 - 100%  Investment holding
RHRERRAR i LRR6,060,10057C RERR
Beijing Leigh-Mardon Pacific Packaging Co, Ltd. PRC Registered capital - 83%  Printing of cigarette

("Beijing LMPP") (Note a) USD13,000,000 packages
IRBEIATFREARAA Gk & 713,000,000% T BERLDR

(eRBER) (Mita)
Bellgate International Limited BVI Ordinary HK$509,040,001 - 100%  Investment holding
Bellgate International Limited RBEAES EBR509,040001 T RARR
Charm Profit Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100%  Investment holding
BREEEERAR &k LERIAT RERR
Dongguan KWG Colour Printing Co, Ltd. PRC Registered capital = 100%  Printing of cigarette

('DG KWG")* (Note b) HK$40,000,000 packages
RRBRVOERAT ([REER]) (M) i & 740,000,000/ BERLDR
Famous Plus Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
HREEBRAR &k L@R100ET RERR
Glory Express International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 - 100%  Investment holding
tRERERAR &k LERAT RERR
Hangzhou Weicheng Printing Co, Ltd. PRC Registered capital = 100%  Printing of cigarette

("HZ Weicheng') (Note c) USD10,000,000 packages
MMEREDRIBRAR (FUMER D) (M) Gk & 710000,000% 7T BERLDR
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38.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38.EEMIB AT (&)

Issued and fully

Place of incorporation/ paid-up share capital/ Percentage of ownership
Name registration and operation  registered capital interest/profit sharing Principal activities
BEARAR ElEERE
£ ERAY/ EMREELS  RE/ERER BREIBAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# %

Hubei Jinghua Colour Printing Co, Ltd. PRC Registered capital - 60%  Printing of cigarette

("HBJH')* (Note d) RMB30,000,000 packages
W REYDERAR (H0E ) (i) GE: &R ARH 300000007 BERLEOR
Jingle Midas Limited BVl Ordinary USD100 = 100%  Investment holding
SRARAA EREAES L@Ri00%ET REZR
Kunming World Grand Innovation Printing Co,, Ltd. PRC Registered capital - 100%  Printing of cigarette

("Kunming World Grand") (Note e) USD7,500,000 packages
ERERMADBERARERER]) (ie) B &7 500000% 7T SERLDR
Leigh-Mardon Pacific Packaging Pte Ltd. Singapore Ordinary 5G518,836,040 - 100%  Investment holding
Leigh-Mardon Pacific Packaging Pte Ltd. i1 L8R 18,836,040 5 I T REBR
Mega Vision Enterprises Limited BvI Ordinary USD1 = 100%  Investment holding
Mega Vision Enterprises Limited RBRIES LERIET REBR
Outstanding Viewpoint Limited BVI Ordinary USD1 - 100%  Investment holding
EBRRAR AERAHE EERIET RERR
Polywin (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
g9 (F8)ERAA &k LRRIAT REER
Qingdao Leigh-Mardon Packaging Co, Ltd. PRC Registered capital = 60%  Printing of cigarette

("Qingdao LMPP") (Note f) USD15,515,000 packages
EERSUREERAR ([EBREH)) (W)  HE HMEA15,515000% T BEDZER
World Grand Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$15,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
EREEARAR &R 115,000,007 7T REER
Xi'an Great Sky Laser Hologram Co, Ltd. PRC Registered capital = 51%  Manufacturing of

("Xi'an Hologram")* (Note g) RMB7,140,000 [aser film
BZARERBEERAR ([BZAK]) (Hitg) HE HMEARARRET,1400007T RATREE
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38.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

206

Place of incorporation/

Issued and fully

3.XTEMBAT (&)

paid-up share capital/

Percentage of ownership

Name registration and operation  registered capital interest/profit sharing Principal activities
BEARAR ElEERE
£ ERAY/ EMREELS  RE/ERER begilt YRRl TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# 584
Xinhong Hong Kong Investment Co,, Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 60%  Investment holding
ELERRABRAR &k EBER10000%T RERR
Xinhong International Investment Limited BvI Ordinary USD100 - 60%  Investment holding
ELERRABRAA RERLEE EERI00%T RERR

Notes:

()

Beijing LMPP is a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise with an
operating period of 50 years commencing from 12 May 1995.

DG KWG is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with an operating period of 25
years commencing from 15 February 2007.

HZ Weicheng is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with an operating period
of 30 years commencing from 30 March 1996.

HBJH is a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise with an operating
period of 27 years commencing from 12 March 2008.

Kunming World Grand is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with an
operating period of 20 years commencing from 7 March 2002.

Qingdao LMPP is a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise with an
operating period of 30 years commencing from 19 May 1993.

Xi'an Hologram is a sino-foreign cooperative joint venture enterprise with an
operating period of 20 years commencing from 4 December 2000.

The English names of these companies represent management's best efforts
at translating the Chinese names of these companies as no English names
have been registered.

IERBEIRTIEERLERE  KLHH
—ANAFERA+ =BT AHS0EF -

REERAIEBELYE  KEHHE-_TT
+&E = A+HB B AH5E -

MMNEKBINEBERE  KEHE— NI
NEZ A=+ BB AHIZ0E -

ML REAFINEBLEDLE  KEHPHH -
ZENE=R+ BT AE27E -

EREZAIEBELE  KEHHE-_TT
ZF=RtARBEAH20F -

BEEREHRTIIREARERE  KEHH
—NA=FA A+ N BEFTAH30EF -

ALZARREBFRINEEEEDE  KEHH =
TETF+= FIU BT AH20F -

ZENRLBEGEMAM - RECERTY
MEEEREEHXAWEDBEZMmA
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MG ERHE

The following is a summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of NTAREBZXEREERBEMRE - i

the Group prepared on the bases set out in Note below:

T XM AT B RS

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —T—+tF ZZT—RF ZE—HF =Z=T—DHNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET FHET FAT FET
RESULTS ES
Turnover S
Printing of cigarette packages B 1E B E R 2,476,805 2,416,802 2,516,854 3,237,658 3,516,907
Manufacturing of transfer paper ISR & IR AT IR
and laser film fUiE 25,860 31,514 34,532 27,024 38,132
2,502,665 2,448,316 2,551,386 3,264,682 3,555,039
Profit before share of profits of RETFE(GEE & A &)
associates St MBI 2 g ) 382,380 516,407 324,873 500,055 607,493
Share of profits of associates FE(RES & 2 B A 64,060 16,521 32,895 33,587 37,019
Profit before tax 7t A A 446,440 532,928 357,768 533,642 644,512
Income tax expenses FrigBiF = (119,315) (130,279) (128,672) (211,380) (237,098)
Profit for the year NSl 327,125 402,649 229,096 322,262 407,414
Attributable to: AT & A el -
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE F=N 266,516 345,785 175,589 256,381 361,567
Non-controlling interests FEFZE I M R 2 60,609 56,864 53,507 65,881 45,847
327,125 402,649 229,096 322,262 407,414
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

VB ERBE
At 31 December
R+t=BA=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E2-N\FE —T—+tF TN —T—RHF —ZT—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET FH&TT FHET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets EMEBEE 4,303,415 3,774,372 3,462,540 3,695,436 3,714,606
Current assets MENEE 2,451,898 2,664,599 2,828,965 3,043,623 4,032,442
Current liabilities mEaE (987,653) (882,269)  (1,480,097) (908,756)  (1,243,626)
Non-current liabilities EMEBBE (1,778,897)  (1,498,074)  (1,309,017)  (2,083,932)  (2,571,725)
Total equity e 3,988,763 4,058,628 3,502,391 3,746,371 3,931,697
Attributable to: AT & AR :
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE Z=DN 3,663,990 3,741,978 3,240,204 3,507,562 3,707,903
Non-controlling interests FEFE B M 324,773 316,650 262,187 238,809 223,794
3,988,763 4,058,628 3,502,391 3,746,371 3,931,697
Note: Amounts disclosed in the summary of financial information for prior years were M MBENBMEARBECBEFESBEIHE
extracted from the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017. BEE-_ZT—tE&E+-_A=+—HLEEZ

FI -
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